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outstanding after consummation of the Restructuring. The aggregate $9.0 million fair value of Class B 
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Common Stock issued to RBS Sempra (par value of less than $0.1 million. recorded as Class B Common Stock; and 
$9.0 million recorded as additional paid in capital on the consolidated balance sheets) was recorded as deferred debt 
issue costs on the consolidated balance sheets. 

• 11,862,551 shares of Class C Common Stock were issued to holders of Preferred Stock, which represented 21.84% of 
the aggregate shares of the common stock outstanding after consummation of the Restructuring. Prior to the 
Restructuring, the Preferred Stock was recorded at its estimated redemption value of $54.6 million on the 
consolidated balance sheets. The aggregate fair value of Class C Common Stock issued to holders of Preferred Stock 
was $28.7 million ($0.1 million par value, recorded as Class C Common Stock; and $28.6 million recorded as 
additional paid in capital on the consolidated balance sheets). The $25.9 million excess of redemption value of the 
Preferred Stock over the fair value of Class C Common Stock issued to the holders of Preferred Stock was recorded 
as a reduction of accumulated deficit on the consolidated balance sheets. 

• 4,499,588 shares of Class C Common Stock to the remaining holders of Holdings' common stock issued and 
outstanding prior to the consummation of the Restructuring, which represented 8.29% of the aggregate shares of 
common stock outstanding after the consummation of the Restructuring. All 4,681,219 shares of Holdings' common 
stock issued and outstanding prior to the Restructuring were retired. 

In connection with the Restructuring, the Company incurred approximately $0.3 million of legal fees, consulting fees and 
other costs directly related to the issuance of shares of common stock outlined above, which were recorded as a reduction of 
additional paid in capital. 

Results of Operations 

Gross Profit by Business Segment 

Gross profit by business segment is summarized in the following table. For purposes of this analysis, gross profit includes fee 
income and realized losses from risk management activities, but excludes unrealized gains (losses) from risk management 
activities. As the underlying customer contracts are not marked-to-market, the unrealized gains (losses) from risk management 
activities do not offer an accurate indication ofthe ultimate cash impact to the business, as the ultimate cash impact to the 
business is not determinable until delivery ofthe respective commodity under the customer contracts and the associated 
revenue and gain (loss) on risk management activity are realized. 

Business Segment 

Natural Gas 
Electricity 
Total gross profit before unrealized (gains) 

losses from risk management activities, 
net 

$103,294 
22,767 

$126,061 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010 Versus 2009 

Natural Gas Gross Profit 

$ 97,968 
22,241 

$ 120,209 

2010 versus 2009 
Increase {Decrease! 
Amount % 

($ in thousands) 

$105,303 $ 5,326 5 
10,227 526 2 

$115,530 $ 5,852 5 

2009 versus 2008 
Increase {Decreasel 
Amount % 

$ (7,335) (7) 
12,014 117 

$ 4,679 4 

Over the course of our fiscal year, natural gas gross profit is impacted by several factors, which include but are not limited to: 

• The prices we charge our customers in relation to the cost of natural gas delivered to our customers; 
• The volume of natural gas delivered to our customers, which is impacted by the number of customers that we serve, 

weather conditions in our markets, economic conditions and other factors that may affect customer usage; 
• Volatility in the market price of natural gas that we purchase for delivery to our customers; and 
• Results of our economic hedging policy that is intended to reduce our financial exposure related to changes in the 

price of natural gas. 

Significant activity affecting natural gas gross profit (before unrealized (gains) losses from risk management activities, net) for 
fiscal years 2010 and 2009 is summarized in the following tables. 
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Gross profit (before unrealized gains (losses) from risk 
management activities) 

Add (less) the relative cost (benefit) during the period associated 
with commodity price volatility and economic hedging 
activity: 

Weighted-average cost of gas methodology 
Realized (gains) losses from risk management activities 

associated with natural gas inventory at end of period 

Fee income 

Amount attributable to natural gas delivered to customers 

Amount 
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Fiscal Yea.- Ended June 30, 
2010 

Amount per 
MMBtu Sold Amount 

(in thousands) 

2009 
Amount per 
MMBtu Sold 

$ 103,294 $ 2.24 $ 97,968 $ 1.79 

(1,146) (0.02) 794 0.01 

(5,598) (0.12) 13,203 0.24 
96,550 2.10 111,965 2.04 

(16,883) (0.37) (20,796) (0.38) 
$ 79,667 $ 1.73 $ 91,169 $ 1.66 

Impact a/Weighted Average Cost ajGas Inventory Valuation Methodology on Cost a/Sales 

Our application of weighted average cost accounting to the valuation of natural gas inventory assumes that an purchases of 
natural gas are initially capitalized as natural gas inventories in the consolidated balance sheet. The resulting weighted average 
cost per MMBtu is then utilized to calculate the cost of natural gas subsequently sold. As a result, when the price per MMBtu 
of natural gas purchased during a reporting period is less than the weighted average cost per MMBtu of storage inventory at 
the beginning ofthe period, the weighted average cost per unit of storage inventory will be lower at the end ofthe period than 
at the beginning of the period. The reduction in inventory value per MMBtu deferred in the balance sheet between the 
beginning and end of an operating period is reflected as an increase in cost of natural gas sold in the consolidated statement of 
operations for the period. 

Conversely, for reporting periods during which natural gas prices per MMBtu are greater during the period than the weighted 
average cost of storage inventory at the beginning of that period, the weighted average cost per unit of storage inventory will 
be higher at the end of the period than at the beginning of the period, resulting in lower cost of natural gas inventory sold for 
that period. 

The impacts described above on the weighted average cost of gas are more pronounced in periods where we inject storage gas 
and have an increase in storage volume from the beginning to the end of the period. Offsetting net increases or decreases in 
gross profit are generally realized in future periods as these inventories are sold. 

Realized Gains and Losses from Risk Management Activities, Net, Associated With Natural Gas Inventories Not Yet Sold 

Since we do not perform hedge accounting, realized (gains) losses from risk management activities, net includes net gains and 
losses related to the settlement of risk management activities associated with natural gas inventories not yet sold. Offsetting 
net increases or decreases in gross profit are generally realized in future periods, between November and March, as these 
inventories are sold. 

Fee Income 

Fee income decreased $3.9 million (19%) during fiscal year 2010, as compared with the prior fiscal year, due primarily to a 
reduction in the number of customers served in markets where we are responsible for billing, and lower credit-related fees due 
to improved credit quality of the overall customer portfolio. 

Gross Profit Attributable to Natural Gas Delivered to Customers 

Our participation in the SSO Program, which began on April 1,2010, resulted in a minimal impact on natural gas gross profit 
from its inception through June 30, 2010. Excluding the impact of the SSO Program, our gross profit for natural gas sold to 
customers would have been $1.80 per MMBtu for fiscal year 2010. 

Lower gross profit attributable to natural gas delivered to customers was due primarily to a 19% reduction in the volumes of 
natural gas sold to customers, which was partially offset by a 4% increase in gross profit per MMBtu of natural gas delivered 
to customers. Lower volumes delivered to customers were due to a lower number of customers served. Higher gross profit 
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per MMBtu sold was due to colder-than-nonnal weather and a favorable pricing environment in many of our natural gas 
markets. During fiscal year 2010, as weather-related demand increased. natural gas commodity prices remained 
uncharacteristically low. This al10wed us to realize higher than normal gross profit, particularly on the incremental volumes 
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of natural gas delivered to customers during the winter. 

Electricity Gross Profit 

Electricity gross profit was 2% higher for fiscal year 2010, as compared with the prior year. An 11 % increase in the volume of 
MWhrs sold to customers, which was driven by higher average RCEs for fiscal year 20 10, was partially offset by an 8% 
reduction in gross profit per MWhr sold during the period, which resulted from competitive pricing environments in many of 
our electricity markets, including our new market in Pennsylvania. 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 Versus 2008 

Natural Gas Gross Profit 

Gross profit (before unrealized gains (losses) from risk 
management activities) $ 

Add (less) the relative cost (benefit) during the period associated 
with commodity price volatility and economic hedging 
activity: 

Weighted-average cost of gas methodology 
Realized (gains) losses from risk management activities 

associated with natural gas inventory at end of period 

Fee income 
Amount attributable to natural gas delivered to customers 

Fee Income 

$ 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2009 2008 

Amount per Amount per 
MMBtu Sold Amount MMBtu Sold Amount 

(in thousands) 

97,968 $ 1.79 $ \05,303 $ 1.94 

794 0.01 (1,376) (0.03) 

\3,203 0.24 (4,826) (0.09) 
111,965 2.04 99,101 1.82 
(20,796) (0.38) (18,833) (0.35) 
91,169 $ 1.66 $ 80,268 $ 1.47 

Our gross margin includes fee income chargcd to customers, primarily in our Georgia natural gas market, for monthly service, 
late payment and shut-off/reconnect service. Fee income was $2.0 million higher for fiscal year 2009, as compared with the 
prior fiscal year, due primarily to increased late payment and service tennination fees in these markets. 

Gross Profit Attributable to Natural Gas Delivered to Customers 

The volume of natural gas MMBtus sold was approximately 1% higher for fiscal year 2009, as compared with the same period 
in the prior fiscal year. Lower average RCEs were offset by higher heating degree days during fiscal year 2009. Higher 
volumes of natural gas sold resulted in higher natural gas gross profit of approximately $0.7 million for fiscal year 2009, as 
compared with the prior fiscal year. 

The net impacts described above were partially offset by higher gross profit per MMBtu sold resulting from a favorable 
pricing environment in many of our markets, particularly for our variable price accounts. 

Electricity Gross Profit 

Higher electricity sales and gross profit were primarily driven by higher average electricity RCEs, which increased 28% during 
fiscal year 2009, as compared with the prior fiscal year, resulting in significantly higher volume ofMWhrs sold. The main 
driver for higher average RCEs was significant organic customer growth in our Texas, Connecticut and New York market 
areas, which was largely due to targeted direct sales marketing activities during fiscal year 2008 and the first three months of 
fiscal year 2009 and a wider range of products offered to customers. Higher gross profit per MWhr sold also contributed to the 
overall increase in electricity gross profit. 

Operating Expenses 

Operating expenses are summarized in the following table. 
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2010 versus 2009 2009 versus 2008 
Increase Increase 

{Decrease! (Dec.-ease} 
Amount ~ Amount % 

thousands) 

General and administrative expenses $ 58,603 $ 59,957 $ 62,271 $ (1,354) (2) $ (2,314) (4) 
Advertising and marketing expenses 3,749 2,117 4,546 1,632 77 (2,429) (53) 
Reserves and discounts 7,495 15,130 7,130 (7,635) (50) 8,000 112 
Depreciation and amortization 22,174 37,575 32,698 (15,401) (41 ) 4,877 15 

Total operating expenses $ 92,021 $ 114,779 $106,645 $ (22,758) (20) $ 8,134 8 

General and Administrative Expenses 

General and administrative expenses are summarized in the following table. 

2010 versus 2009 2009veTsus 2008 
Increase Increase 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30! (Decreasel (Decrease} 
2010 2009 200S Amount ~ Amount % 

($ in thousands) 
Salaries and employee benefits $ 36,648 $ 33,644 $ 36,007 $ 3,004 9 $ (2,363) (7) 
Professional fees 6,391 7,998 9,360 (1,607) (20) (1,362) ( 15) 
Other general and administrative 

expenses 15,564 18,315 16,904 (2,751 ) (15) 1,411 8 
Total general and administrative 

$ 5R,603 expenses $ 59,957 $ 62,271 $ (1,354) (2) $ (2,314) (4) 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010 versus 2009 

In connection with the Restructuring, we recorded approximately $2.2 million of non-recurring general and administrative 
expenses during fiscal year 2010, including: 

• $0.8 million of bonuses, included in salaries and employee benefits, which were paid to management in connection 
wilh the conSUIIlIIli:ltion of the Restructuring; 

• $0.2 million of severance costs, included in salaries and employee benefits, which related to certain employees 
tenninated in September 2009 as part of an initiative to streamline our organizational structure and control operating 
costs; and 

• $1.2 million of professional fees incurred in connection with various potential liquidity events considered during 
fiscal year 2009 and the first three months of fiscal year 2010. 

Salaries and employee benefits for fiscal year 2010 also includes the following non-recurring activity: 

• In May 2010, we incurred $1.3 million of severance costs when our Executive Vice President left the Company; and 
• Also in May 2010, we amended the employment agreement and entered into a relocation agreement with our 

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, which resulted in additional compensation cost of$0.9 million 
during fiscal year 2010. 

Excluding these incremental costs, salaries and employee benefits, expenses were slightly lower for fiscal year 2010, as 
compared with the prior fiscal year, primarily as a result of a reduced number of employees. 

Excluding the incremental costs described above, lower professional fees for fiscal year 2010 were primarily due to 
tennination of management consulting agreements in connection with the Restructuring, and, lower consulting fees associated 
with compliance with the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002. 

Lower other general and administrative expenses during the fiscal year 2010 were primarily due to lower customer care and 
billing related expenses as a result of generally lower numbers of customers served in our natural gas business segment. 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 Versus 2008 

Throughout fiscal year 2008, we incurred significant incremental general and administrative expenses related to initiatives to 
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functions in support of business growth. In addition, we increased our staff count and incurred other incremental 
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costs to enhance our overall internal control environment, including Ollf infonnation technology and financial reporting 
controls, and to develop a fonnal internal audit function. A portion of these incremental contracted services and other 
incremental costs in fiscal year 2008 have not recurred during fiscal year 2009, resulting in generally lower general and 
administrative expenses. 

In March 2008, the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors approved the issuance of 19,000 total shares of 
common stock to two of Oll! senior executives. Total compensation expense related to issuance of these shares was 
approximately $1.7 million, which included the fair value of the common stock issued and additional compensation to offset 
the taxable nature of the shares to the employees. Excluding the impact of the compensation expense from issuance of these 
shares in fiscal year 2008, salaries and employee benefits decreased $0.7 million (2%) during fiscal year 2009, as compared 
with the prior fiscal year. Salaries and employee benefits include the cost of contracted services to supplement our employees 
in certain departments. Lower salaries and related expenses during fiscal year 2009 are primarily due to lower contracted 
services costs. 

Higher other general and administrative expenses during fiscal year 2009 were primarily due to generally higher customer care 
and billing related expenses. 

Advertising and Marketing Expenses 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010 versus 2009 

Higher advertising and marketing expenses for fiscal year 20ID, as compared with the prior fiscal year, reflects our return to a 
more nonnal marketing environment subsequent to the Restructuring. As part of an overall corporate strategy to manage our 
liquidity position, and in response to amendments to the Revolving Credit Facility and Hedge Facility that placed limitations 
on amounts that we could spend on marketing activities and on the products we could offer to our customers, we curtailed our 
level of sales and marketing activity, resulting in significantly lower advertising and marketing expenses during the second 
half of fiscal year 2009 and the first three months offiscal year 2010. 

As a result of the Restructuring, we now have the ability to market a wider variety of products to current and potential 
customers using our traditional marketing channels. During the last nine months of fiscal year 2009, we implemented various 
elements of our fiscal year 2010 growth and marketing plan, which included strategic marketing initiatives in our current 
markets as well as incremental marketing expenses related to new markets, particularly a new electricity market in 
Pennsylvania. 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 Versus 2008 

As part of an overall corporate strategy to manage our liquidity position, and in response to amendments to our Revolving 
Credit Facility and Hedge Facility that placed limitations on amounts that we could spend on marketing activities and on the 
products we could offer to our customers, we intentionally curtailed our level of sales and marketing activity, resulting in 
significantly lower advertising and marketing expenses during fiscal year 2009, as compared with prior fiscal year. 

Reserves and Discounts 

Reserves and discounts are summarized in the following table. 

Provision for doubtful 
accounts 

Contractual discounts for 
LDC guarantees of 
customer accounts 
receivable (I) 

Total reserves and discounts 

$ 

$ 

2010 versus 2009 
Inc.-ease 

Fiscal Yea.- Ended June 30, (Dec.-ease) 
2010 2009 2008 Amount ~ 

5,164 $ 12,009 $ 

2,331 
7,495 $ 

3,121 
15,130 $ 

($ in thousands) 

5,050 $ 

2,080 
7,130 $ 

(6,845) 

(790) 
(7,635) 

(57) $ 

(25) 

(50) $ 

2009 versus 2008 
Inc.-ease 

(Dec.-ease) 
Amount % 

6,959 

1,041 
8,000 

138 

50 

112 

(1) By agreement, certain LDCs guarantee the collection of customer accounts receivable. Contractual discounts charged by 
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various LDCs average approximately 1 % of collections, which is effectively the cost to guarantee the customer accounts 
receivable. 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010 versus 2009 

The lower provision for doubtful accounts during fiscal year 2010 was primarily due to the following factors: 
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• Sales of natural gas and electricity in markets where customer accounts receivable are not guaranteed by LDCs 
decreased 33% during fiscal year 2010, as compared with the same period in the prior fiscal year; 

• The aging of our customer accounts receivable deteriorated in certain of our larger markets in Georgia, Texas and the 
northeastern U.S. during fiscal year 2009, which resulted in charge-offs of customer accounts receivable and 
provisions for doubtful accounts for those markets that were higher than our historical levels. Credit environments 
have generally stabilized in our markets during fiscal year 2010; 

• Our acquisition of Catalyst Natural Gas, LLC in October 2008 resulted in higher reserves against customer accounts 
receivable deemed uncollectible and incremental charge-offs of customer accounts receivable, which contributed to a 
higher provision for doubtful accounts in our Georgia natural gas market during fiscal year 2009 and the first quarter 
of fiscal year 2010. There were no purchase acquisitions of customer accounts during fiscal year 2010 that resulted in 
incremental charge-offs or provisions for doubtful accounts; and 

• During fiscal year 2009, we initiated more stringent credit standards for our new and existing customers, which 
resulted in generally higher credit quality in our customer portfolio during fiscal year 2010. 

We continuously monitor economic conditions and collections experience in our markets in order to assess appropriate levels 
of our allowance for doubtful accounts. Refer to Item 7 A of this Annual Report for additional commentary regarding our 
management of credit risk. 

Lower contractual discounts for LDC guarantees of customer accounts receivable during fiscal year 2010 were due to 
generally lower sales of natural gas and electricity within our LDC-guaranteed markets. The weighted-average contractual 
discount rates for fiscal year 2010 were comparable to the rates for the same periods in the prior fiscal year. 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 Versus 2008 

Accounts receivable includes cash imbalance settlements that represent the value ~f excess natural gas delivered tu LDCs for 
consumption by our customers and actual customer usage. Historically, we have collected 100% of these imbalance 
settlement receivables. However, as a result of a bankruptcy filing by a retail marketer in Georgia in October 2008, the 
collection of our imbalance receivable position in Georgia was placed at risk. A preliminary settlement proposal offered in 
March 2009 for resolution of the imbalance receivable resulted in us recording an incremental provision for bad debt expense 
of approximately $0.6 million during fiscal year 2009. 

Excluding the impact of the Georgia imbalance settlement, the higher provision for doubtful accounts for fiscal year 2009 was 
primarily due to: 

• higher revenue during fiscal year 2009 in our largest non-guaranteed natural gas market in Georgia and in our non
guaranteed electricity market in Texas. Total sales of natural gas and electricity for these markets increased a 
combined 7% during fiscal year 2009; and 

• general deterioration in the aging of customer accounts receivable and higher charge off experience in certain 
markets, including Georgia and Texas. The deterioration in Georgia was primarily related to collections activity 
related to customers acquired from Catalyst Natural Gas, LLC in October 2008. 

We continue to monitor economic conditions and collections experience in our markets in order to assess appropriate levels of 
our allowance for doubtful accounts. 

Higher contractual discounts for LDC guarantees of customer accounts receivable during fiscal year 2009, as compared with 
the prior fiscal year, are due to generally higher sales of natural gas and electricity within our LDC guaranteed markets and to 
a higher weighted-average contractual discount rate. Total revenues within these markets decreased approximately 28% 
during fiscal year 2009, as compared to the prior fiscal year, primarily due to overall organic growth within these markets. 
The weighted-average contractual discount rate charged by LDCs also increased by approximately 37%, primarily due to 
changes in customer market concentrations and increases in the discount rates required by LDCs in certain markets. 

Depreciation and Amortization 

Depreciation and amortization expenses are summarized in the following table. 
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2010 versus 2009 2009versus 2008 
Inuease Incr"use 

(Decrease) (Deuease) 
Amount ~ Amount % 

($ in thousands) 

Depreciation of fixed assets $ 2,358 $ 7,787 $ 9,274 $ (5,429) (70) $ (1487) (16) 
Amortization of customer acquisition 

costs 19,814 29,777 23,414 (9,963) (33) 6,363 27 
Other amortization expense 2 11 10 (9) (82) 1 10 

Total depreciation and amortization $ 22,174 $ 37,575 $ 32,698 $ (15,401) (41) $ 4,877 15 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010 versus 2009 

In connection with OUf purchase of SESCo in August 2006, we acquired software. fixed assets and customer contracts, the 
aggregate cost of which was depreciated or amortized over a three-year period. Lower depreciation and amortization expenses 
during fiscal year 2010 was primarily due to these acquired assets being fully depreciated or amortized as of August 2009. 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 Versus 2008 

During fiscal year 2008, we shifted our marketing focus and resources towards direct sales and marketing activities. Much of 
the cost associated with these direct marketing channels during fiscal years 2009 and 2008 were deferred as customer 
acquisition costs on our consolidated balance sheet and are being amortized over a three-year estimated benefit period. Higher 
amortization expense for fiscal year 2009 was primarily due to these higher deferrals of direct marketing costs. 

Illterest Expense, net 

Interest expense is summarized in the following table. 

Interest related to debt instruments: 
Floating Rate Notes due 2011 $ 
Fixed Rate Notes due 2014 
Denham Credit Facility 

Interest and fees related to supply and 
hedging facilities: 
Commodity Supply Facility 
Revolving Credit Facility 
Hedge Facility 

Change in value of interest rate swaps 
(1) 

Amortization of deferred financing 
costs and original debt issue discount 

Other 
Total interest expense 
Less: interest income 
Interest expense, net $ 

2010 versus 2009 
Increase 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, (Decrease) 
2010 2009 2008 Amount % 

($ in thousands) 

3,678 $ 16,834 $ 20,983 $ (13,156) (78) $ 
6,850 6,850 100 

246 813 528 (567) (70) 

7,610 7,610 100 
1,185 7,809 3,021 (6,624) (85) 
1,788 4,133 2,906 (2,345) (57) 

2,095 4,999 4,963 (2,904) (58) 

11,608 10,332 5,345 1,276 12 
193 815 165 (622) (76) 

35,253 45,735 37,911 (10,482) (23) 
(271) (430) (3,806) 159 (37) 

34,982 $ 45,305 $ 34,105 $ PO,323) (23) $ 

2009 versus 2008 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Amount 0/0 

(4,149) (20) 

285 54 

4,788 158 
1,227 42 

36 

4,987 93 
650 394 

7,824 21 
3,376 (89) 

11,200 33 

(1) Includes mark-to-market adjustments and interest expense associated with interest rate swap agreements utilized to 
manage exposure to interest rate fluctuations related to the Floating Rate Senior Notes due 2011 and the Commodity 
Supply Facility. 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010 versus 2009 
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Interest Related to Debt Instruments 

Lower total interest expense associated with debt instruments for fiscal year 2010 is primarily due to decreased total debt 
balances resulting from the Restructuring. The total aggregate principal balance outstanding under debt instruments decreased 
from approximately $177.2 million prior to the Restructuring to $74.2 million after the Restructuring. 
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Lower interest expense associated with the Floating Rate Notes due 2011 for fiscal year 2010 was due to a combination of 
lower debt balances and lower interest rates. As a result ofthe Restructuring, the average aggregate outstanding principal 
balance of Floating Rate Notes due 2011 decreased to approximately $42.5 million for fiscal year 2010, from $165.2 million 
for the prior fiscal year. The weighted-average interest rate for the Floating Rate Notes due 2011 also decreased to 8.26% for 
fiscal year 20 I 0 from 10.02% for the prior fiscal year. 

The $67.8 million aggregate principal amount of Fixed Rate Notes due 2014 issued in connection with the Restructuring bears 
interest at 13.25%, which is higher than the average interest rates on outstanding debt instruments prior to the Restructuring. 
The higher interest rate on the Floating Rate Notes due 2014 partially offset the impact oflower average debt balances for 
fiscal year 20 I o. 

Interest and Fees Related to Supply and Hedging Facilities 

In connection with the Restructuring, the Commodity Supply Facility replaced the Revolving Credit Facility and Hedge 
Facility effective September 22, 2009. During the three months ended September 30, 2009, we incurred significant fees 
related to extension and winding down of the Hedge Facility and Revolving Credit Facility prior to the Restructuring. 
Excluding these incremental fees, fees associated with our supply and hedging activities are generally lower under the 
Commodity Supply Facility than those under the former Revolving Credit Facility and Hedge Facility. 

Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs and Original Debt Issue Discount 

Higher amortization of deferred debt issue costs and original issue discount during fiscal year 2010 was due to the net impact 
ofthe following activity: 

• In connection with the Restructuring, we deferred approximately $16.0.miIJion of costs related to the Commodity 
Supply Facility and the Fixed Rate Notes due 2014. including cash expenditures of approximately $7.0 million and 
the aggregate $9.0 million fair value of Class B Common Stock issued to RBS Sempra in a non-cash transaction as a 
condition to the entry into the ISDA Master Agreements. Amortization of these costs resulted in $3.7 mi1lion of 
incremental interest expense during fiscal year 2010. 

• In connection with the Restructuring, approximately $158.8 million aggregate principal amount of Floating Rate 
Notes due 2011 was exchanged for cash, Fixed Rate Notes due 2014 and Class A Common Stock. As a result, we 
recorded incremental interest expense of$3.1 million during fiscal year 2010, which represents accelerated 
amortization equivalent to a pro rata portion of the original issue discount and deferred debt issue costs associated 
with the Floating Rate Notes due 2011 that were exchanged in connection with the Restructuring. 

• During fiscal year 2009 and the first three months of fiscal year 2010. we negotiated several amendments to our 
Hedge Facility and our Revolving Credit Facility. Approximately $9.1 million oftotal fees associated with these 
amendments were deferred during fiscal year 2009 and the first three months of fiscal year 2010. which were 
amortized through the September 21, 2009 maturity date of the Revolving Credit Facility and Hedge Facility. 
Incremental interest expense associated with amortization of these costs was approximately $1.6 million for fiscal 
year 2010 versus $7.5 million for fiscal year 2009. 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 Versus 2008 

Lower interest accrued on the Floating Rate Notes due 2011 was primarily due to a lower average interest rate, which 
decreased to 10.02% for fiscal year 2009 from 11.95% for fiscal year 2008. The average aggregate balance of Floating Rate 
Notes due 2011 outstanding also decreased to $165.2 million for fiscal year 2009, as compared to $172.4 million for fiscal 
year 2008, as a result of our purchases of Floating Rate Notes due 2011 during fiscal year 2008. 

Higher interest and fees related to the Revolving Credit Facility were due to the following activity: 

• higher interest and fees associated with outstanding obligations under the Revolving Credit Facility, partially due to 
an increase of approximately 20% in the average balance of cash advances and letters of credit outstanding, and 
partially due to generally higher letter of credit fees resulting from amendments to the agreement that governed the 
Revolving Credit Facility during fiscal year 2009~ and 

• the Bridge Financing Loans from certain shareholders and members of senior management. as required by 
amendments to the agreement that governed the Revolving Credit Facility, which resulted in approximately $2.7 
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During fiscal year 2009, we negotiated several amendments to our Hedge Facility and our Revolving Credit Facility. 
Approximately $8.7 rniIJion of fees associated with these amendments were deferred during fiscal year 2009 for amortization 
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over the remaining amended term ofthe facilities. Incremental interest expense of $7.5 million for fiscal year 2009 was a 
direct result of amortization of these deferred costs. 

Lower interest income was a direct result of lower average cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash balances during fiscal 
year 2009 as well as a lower average interest rate earned during the year, as compared to the same period in fiscal year 2008. 

Income Tax (Expense) Benefit 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010 versus 2009 

Our effective tax rate was a charge of 56.1 % and a benefit of 21.4% for fiscal year 2010 and 2009, respectively. The higher 
effective tax rate for fiscal year 2010, as compared to fiscal year 2009, was primarily due to recognition afan additional 
valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets at June 30, 2010, which resulted from a change in the mix of deferred tax 
assets. 

The significant components ofthe Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities are summarized in the following table. 

Balance at June 30. 
2010 200. 

(in thousands) 
Deferred tax assets: 

Depreciation and amortization $ 18,751 $ 18,982 
Net unrealized losses from risk management activities 3,197 18,693 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 1,992 2,860 
Tax loss carryforwards 3,652 2,724 
Accrued bonuses 1,540 1,707 
Stock compensation expense 901 1,642 
Novation of interest rate swaps 2,996 
Other reserves 133 165 
Valuation allowance (28,123) (22,664) 

Total deferred tax assets 5,039 24,109 
Deferred tax liabilities: 

State tax liability 32 
Total deferrt:d tax liabilities 32 

Net deferred tax asset $ 5,007 $ 24,109 

Balance sheet classification: 
Current deferred tax asset $ 1,378 $ 9,020 
Long-term deferred tax asset 3,629 15,089 
Current deferred tax liability 
Net deferred tax asset $ 5,007 $ 24,109 

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities 
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Our policy is to establish a valuation 
allowance if it is "more likely than not" that the related tax benefits will not be realized. 

We have deferred tax assets related to unrealized losses from risk management activities. We anticipate that these deferred tax 
assets will be realized in future periods when sales of fixed price commodities, to which the unrealized losses from risk 
management activities relate, occur. Therefore, we did not establish a valuation al10wance for these deferred tax assets. 

For the remaining deferred tax assets, we determined based on available evidence, including historical financial results for the 
last three years, that it is "more Jikely than not" that a portion of these items may not be recoverable in the future. We 
increased the valuation allowance associated with our U.S. operations by $5.5 million, due to a change in the mix of related 
deferred tax assets, resulting in a charge to tax expense for fiscal year 2010. 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2009 Versus 2008 

Our effective tax rate was a tax benefit of21.4% and tax expense of 40.9% for fiscal years 2009 and 2008, respectively. The 
change in the effective tax rate was primarily due to the impact of a valuation allowance recorded at June 30, 2009 against 
deferred tax assets, as described below, and changes in the mix and amounts of permanent differences and to a lower state 
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The significant components of the Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities are summarized in the following table. 
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Balance at June 30, 
2009 2008 

(in thousands) 
Deferred tax assets: 

Depreciation and amortization $ 18,982 $ 12,877 
Net unrealized losses from risk management activities 18,693 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 2,860 2,035 
Tax loss carryforwards 2,724 
Accrued bonuses 1,707 1,090 
Stock compensation expense 1,642 1,664 
Other reserves 165 122 
Valuation allowance [22,664) 

Total deferred tax assets 24,109 17,788 
Deferred tax liabilities: 

Net unrealized gains from risk management activities [17,085) 
Total deferred tax liabilities [17,085) 

Net deferred tax asset $ 24,109 $ 703 

Balance sheet classification: 
Current deferred tax asset $ 9,020 $ 
Long-term deferred tax asset 15,089 10,503 
Current deferred tax liability [9,800) 
Net deferred tax asset $ 24,109 $ 703 

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities 
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Our policy is to establish a valuation 
allowance if it is "more likely than not" that the related ta'X benefits will not be realized. 

We have deferred tax assets related to unrealized losses from risk management activities. We anticipate that these deferred tax 
assets will be realized in future periods when sales of fixed price commodities, to which the unrealized losses from risk 
management activities relate, occur. Therefore, we did not establish a valuation allowance for these deferred tax assets. For 
the remaining deferred tax assets reflected in the table above, we detennined based on available evidence including historical 
financial results for the Imit three years, that it is "more likely than not" that a portion of these items may not be recoverable in 
the future. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Our principal sources ofliquidity for our ongoing operations are cash collected from sales of natural gas and electricity to 
customers and borrowings under our credit facilities. Our primary liquidity requirements arise primarily from our seasonal 
working capital needs, including purchases of natural gas inventories, collateral requirements related to supplier, LDC, 
transportation and storage arrangements, acquisition of customers and debt service obligations. Because we sell natural gas 
and electricity, we are subject to material variations in short-tenn indebtedness under our credit facilities on a seasonal basis, 
due to the timing and price of commodity purchases to meet customer demands. 

Through September 21, 2009, we relied on the following credit and commodity hedging arrangements to provide the liquidity 
necessary for operation of our natural gas and electricity businesses: 

• The Revolving Credit Facility was used primarily to post letters of credit required to effectively operate within the 
markets that we serve~ 

• The Hedge Facility was used as our primary facility to economically hedge variability in the cost of natural gas; and 
• Commodity derivative arrangements with various counterparties were used to economically hedge variability in the 

cost of electricity. 

A sharp drop in natural gas market prices during the six months ended December 31, 2008 resulted in a significant reduction in 
the natural gas inventory component of the available borrowing base under the Revolving Credit Facility. The reduced 
borrowing base strained our ability to post letters of credit as collateral with suppliers and hedge providers, caused defaults of 
certain financial covenants included in the agreement that governed the Revolving Credit Facility, prompted downgrades in 
our credit ratings and ultimately resulted in our seeking and obtaining material waivers of debt covenants and defaults and 
amendments to the agreement that governed the Revolving Credit Facility and the Hedge Facility. Such amendments had 
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As a result of the Restructuring, we significantly decreased our outstanding debt obligations and debt service requirements for 
fiscal years 20 I 0 and future years. In addition, the Revolving Credit Facility and Hedge Facility were replaced by the 
Commodity Supply Facility, which provides us with a stable source of liquidity through August 2012 with an investment 
grade counterparty. Overall, the transactions consummated in the Restructuring improved our liquidity position, improved our 
financial and operational flexibility and allowed us to compete more effectively within the markets that we serve. 

The Commodity Supply Facility provides for cash borrowings of up to $45.0 million that we may access to finance seasonal 
working capital requirements, provided that we are in compliance with the Collateral Coverage Ratio requirement, as 
described below. These cash borrowings will accrue interest at the greater of: (1) RBS Sempra's cost of funds plus 5%; or 
(2) LlBOR plus 5%. Outstanding credit support (e.g., letters of credit andlor guarantees) provided by RBS Sempra will accrue 
interest at LIBOR plus 3%, with a minimum rate of 4% except that, if the cash held in certain collateral accounts exceeds all 
outstanding settlement payments under the Commodity Supply Facility by $27.0 million, interest will accrue at a reduced rate 
of 1% on the amount of outstanding credit support in excess of$27.0 million. 

In accordance with the terms of the ISDA Master Agreements, we are required to maintain a minimum collateral coverage 
ratio (the "Collateral Coverage Ratio") of 1.25: 1.00 for the months of October through March (inclusive) and 1.40:1.00 for any 
other calendar month. The Collateral Coverage Ratio is calculated as the ratio of: (I) certain of our assets, primarily cash, 
amounts due from RBS Sempra representing our operating cash, accounts receivable from our customers and LDCs and 
natural gas inventories; to (2) certain of our liabilities, primarily arising from exposure andlor amounts due to RBS Sempra as 
a result of our agreements (including amounts due for the purchase of natural gas and electricity, accrued but unpaid financing 
fees and settlements arising from derivative contracts). 

As of June 30, 2010, we had a Collateral Coverage Ratio of approximately 3.41 :1.00. The calculation of the Collateral 
Coverage Ratio as of June 30, 2010 reflected available liquidity under the Commodity Supply Facility of approximately $62.3 
million. At June 30, 2010, we had no outstanding cash advances and had $34.0 million ofletters of credit outstanding under 
the Commodity Supply Facility. 

Cash Flow 

During fiscal year 20]0, our cash and cash equivalents decreased $17.0 million to a balance of$6.2 million at the end of the 
period. Approximately $36.0 million of cash was provided by operating activities during the period, which reflects an $88.8 
million change from the $52.8 million used in operations for fiscal year 2009. 

In connection with the Commodity Supply Facility, certain banking relationships that previously belonged to the Company are 
now under RBS Sempra's name and control. RBS Sempra releases cash to us as required to meet our ongoing operating cash 
requirements. The ISDA Master Agreements also include provisions that allow for net settlement of amounts from and due to 
RBS Sempra. Accordingly, we report amounts due from and due to RBS Sempra net on the consolidated balance sheets. At 
June 30, 2010, the net $43.1 million amount due from RBS Sempra, which is reported as accounts receivable, net - RBS 
Sempra on the consolidated balance sheets, represents net cash available to us for working capital needs during future months. 

During fiscal year 2009, in connection with amendments to the Revolving Credit Facility, we deposited $75.0 million of our 
operating cash into a new cash account, which was restricted for use as collateral to provide security for letters of credit 
outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility. In connection with the Restructuring, the restrictions on this account were 
removed, and the cash was returned to us and used for various Restructuring-related transactions. 

Cash provided by operating activities during fiscal year 2010 also reflects the following net activity: 

• Higher net income (after adjustment for non-cash operating items such as unrealized gains and losses from risk 
management activities, depreciation and amortization expense, deferred income tax expense, provision for doubtful 
accounts and stock compensation expense) resulting from higher gross profit (excluding unrealized gains and losses 
from risk management activities), lower non-cash operating expenses and lower non-cash interest expense; offset by 

• Higher use of operating cash for working capital items, mostly as a result of various transactions and activity related 
to the Restructuring; 

• $9.0 million was transferred from cash and cash equivalents to an escrow account (the "Fixed Rate Notes Escrow 
Account"), which is maintained as security for future interest payments to holders of the Fixed Rate Notes due 2014; 
and 

• Higher use of operating cash for acquisition of customers. 

The Restructuring also resulted in the following material uses of cash and cash equivalents for investing and financing 
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• $26.7 million was paid to bondholders in partial exchange for their Floating Rate Notes due 2011; 
• $12.0 million of principaJ outstanding under the Denham Credit Facility, plus accrued and unpaid interest, was repaid 

and the Denham Credit Facility was terminated; 
• $6.4 million of legal, consulting and other fees directly related to various Restructuring transactions were paid and 

recorded as deferred debt issuance costs ($6.1 million) and stock issue costs recorded as a reduction of additional paid 
in capital ($0.3 million). The deferred debt issue costs will be amortized as an increase to interest expense over the 
remaining terms of the related agreements; and 

• $5.4 million of principal outstanding under the Bridge Financing Loans, plus accrued and unpaid interest, were repaid 
and the Bridge Financing Loans were tenninated. 

Commodity Supply Facility 

As a result of the Restructuring consummated on September 22, 2009, the Revolving Credit Facility, Hedge Facility and 
various arrangements for the supply of natural gas and electricity were replaced by the Commodity Supply Facility. Under 
the Commodity Supply Facility, the primary obligors are MXenergy Inc. and MXenergy Electric Inc. and all obligations are 
guaranteed by Holdings and its other domestic subsidiaries. Obligations under the Commodity Supply Facility are secured by 
a first priority lien on substantially all of Holdings' and its domestic subsidiaries' existing and future assets, other than an 
interest reserve account held on behalf ofthe holders ofthe Fixed Rate Notes due 2014. The maturity date of the Commodity 
Supply Facility is August 31, 2012. RBS Sempra will have the right to extend such maturity date by one year at its sole 
discretion, provided that such notice is provided by RBS Sempra no later than April 30, 2011. 

The Commodity Supply Facility provides for the exclusive supply of physical (other than as needed for balancing) and 
financial natural gas and electricity, credit support (including letters of credit and guarantees) for certain collateral needs, 
payment extension financing and/or storage financing as needed, and associated hedging transactions in order to maintain the 
Company's requircd matched trading book. In addition, the Commodity Supply Facility provides that we release natural ga .. 
transportation and storage capacity to RBS Sempra and for RBS Sempra to perfonn certain natural gas and electricity 
nominations. The Commodity Supply Facility also will previde for RBS Sempra to act on the Company's behalf to satisfy the 
requirements of regional transmission operators for capacity rights and ancillary services. 

The Commodity Supply Facility is governed by separate ISDA Master Agreements for natural gas and electricity. During 
fiscal year 2010, we entered into amendments to the ISDA Master Agreements for natural gas and electricity, respectively, 
with the Company and certain of its subsidiaries, as guarantors, and RBS Sempra. The following changes to the ISDA Master 
Agreements resulted from these arnendment:;: 

• The definition of Adjusted Consolidated Tangible Net Worth in the ISDA Master Agreements was amended to 
exclude non-cash charges associated with any deferred tax valuation allowances; 

• The date by which we were required to release or arrange for the release of all of our pipeline transportation and 
storage capacity on interstate and inter provincial pipelines directly to RBS Sempra was extended to Aprill, 2010 
from December 31, 2009; 

• Certain fees related to natural gas supply and hedging activity specifically related to the SSO program were revised; 
and 

• Natural gas purchased by us from RBS Sempra as a result of our participation in the SSO Program was specifically 
excluded from certain volume limitations and/or minimum purchase requirements under the ISDA Master 
Agreements. 

As of June 30, 2010, we were in compliance with all provisions of the ISDA Master Agreements. 

Under the supply tenns ofthe Commodity Supply Facility, the Company has the ability to: (I) seek commodity price quotes 
from third parties for certain physically or financially settled transactions with respect to gas and electricity; and (2) request 
that RBS Sempra enter into such transactions with such third parties at such prices and to concurrently enter into back-to-back 
off-setting transactions with the Company with respect to such third party transactions. RBS Sempra would not be obligated 
to enter into a transaction with any third party unless RBS Sempra is satisfied with such transaction and the volume of those 
transactions does not exceed annual limits. In addition to the actual purchase price paid by RBS Sempra and certain related 
costs and expenses, the Company wilJ be charged a fee for such third-party purchases. 

The Commodity Supply Facility also provides for certain volumetric fees for all natural gas and electricity purchases, as well 
as minimum purchase requirements for both natural gas and electricity over the initial three-year tenn and over the optional 
one-year extension term. 
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movements thereafter. Fixed price hedges will be limited to a contract length tenn of24 months. In addition, the fixed price 
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portfolio of hedges will be limited to a weighted-average volumetric tenor not to exceed 14 months in duration. With regards 
to the Company's fixed price customer mix, the Company may not, during any 12 month period, enter into any new fixed price 
contracts with respect to the gas business where the residential customer equivalents of such contracts are greater than 75% of 
all residential customer equivalents of all new contracts entered into during such period and/or maintain a customer portfolio 
with more than 325,000 residential customer equivalents operating under fixed price contracts. 

The maximum amount of cash borrowings permitted under the storage and/or payment extension financing provisions ofthe 
Commodity Supply Facility will be $45.0 million. These cash borrowings will accrue interest at the greater of: (1) RBS 
Sempra's cost of funds plus 5%; or (2) LIBOR plus 5%. Outstanding credit support (e.g., letters of credit and/or guarantees) 
provided by RBS Sempra will accrue interest at the greater of 4% or LIBOR plus 3%, provided however, that, if on any date of 
detennination, no termination event has occurred with respect to Holdings and its affiliates and the cash held in certain 
collateral accounts exceeds all outstanding settlement payments under the Commodity Supply Facility, interest will accrue at a 
reduced rate of 1.0% on that portion of the credit support amount that is in excess of$27.0 million. 

In connection with the aggregate exposure outstanding under the Commodity Supply Facility, the Company must maintain a 
Collateral Coverage Ratio greater than 1.25: 1.0 during the months of October through March, and greater then 1.4: 1.0 during 
the months of April through September. In addition, the Company must maintain a consolidated tangible net worth, as defined 
in the agreement that governs the Commodity Supply Facility, of at least $60.0 million. 

The ISDA Master Agreements contain customary covenants that restrict certain activities including, among other things, the 
Company's ability to: 

• incur additional indebtedness; 
• create or incur liens; 
• guarantee obligations of other parties; 
• engage in mergers, consolidations, liquidations and dissolutions; 
• create subsidiaries; 
• make acquisitions; 
• engage in certain asset sales; 
• enter into leases or sale-leasebacks; 
• make equity distributions; 
• make f;apital expenditures; 
• make loans and investments; 
• make certain dividend, debt and other restricted payments; 
• engage in a different line of business; 
• amend, modity or terminate certain material agreements in a manner that is adverse to the lenders; and 
• engage in certain transactions with affiliates. 

The Commodity Supply Facility also contains customary events of default, including: 

• payment defaults; 
• breaches of representations and warranties; 
• covenant defaults; 
• cross defaults to certain other indebtedness in excess of specified amounts; 
• certain events of bankruptcy and insolvency; 
• ERISA defaults; 
• judgments in excess of specified amounts; 
• failure of any guaranty or security document supporting the Commodity Supply Facility to be in full force and effect; 
• the tennination or cancellation of any material contract which termination or cancellation could reasonably be 

expected to have a material adverse effect on us; or 
• a change of control. 

Fixed Rale Noles due 2014 

Pursuant to the Restructuring consummated on September 22, 2009, the Company issued $67.8 million aggregate principal 
amount of Fixed Rate Notes due 2014. Interest on the Fixed Rate Notes due 2014 accrues at the rate of 13.25% per annum and 
is payable semi-annually in cash on February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing on February 1,2010, to the holders of 
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quarter of fiscal year 201 D, and which will be amortized as an increase to interest expense over the remaining life of the Fixed 
Rate Notes due 2014. 

On December 30, 2009, we entered into a purchase agreement (the "Stock and Notes Purchase Agreement") pursuant to which 
a holder of our Class A Common Stock and Fixed Rate Notes due 2014 (the "Seller") agreed to sell its holdings to us. 
Pursuant to the Stock and Notes Purchase Agreement, on January 4, 2010, we acquired approximately $0.5 million aggregate 
principal amount of Fixed Rate Notes due 2014 from the Seller for approximately $0.3 million. The resulting gain on 
extinguishment of debt of$0.2 million was recorded as a reduction of interest expense during fiscal year 2010. A pro rata 
portion of deferred debt issue costs and original debt issue discount associated with the Fixed Rate Notes due 2014 acquired, 
which approximated an aggregate amount of $0.1 million, was also recorded as additional interest expense during fiscal year 
2010. 

The Fixed Rate Notes due 2014 are senior subordinated secured obligations of the Company, subordinated in right of payment 
to obligations of the Company under the Commodity Supply Facility. The Fixed Rate Notes due 2014 are senior in priority to 
the Company's unsecured senior obligations, including the Floating Rate Notes due 2011, to the extent of the value of the 
assets securing the Fixed Rate Notes due 2014 in excess ofthe aggregate amount of the outstanding Commodity Supply 
Facility obligations. 

The Fixed Rate Notes due 2014 are jointly, severally, fully and unconditionally guaranteed by all domestic subsidiaries of 
Holdings. 

The Fixed Rate Notes due 2014 are secured by a first priority interest in the Fixed Rate Notes Escrow Account and by a 
second-priority security interest in substantially all other existing and future assets of the Company. The Fixed Rate Notes 
Escrow Account was funded with approximately $9.0 million in September 2009, which represents the approximate interest 
p~yable on the Fixed Rate Notes due 2014 for a twelve-month p_eriod. 

Floating Rate Notes due 2011 

On August 4, 2006, we issued $190.0 million aggregate principal amount of Floating Rate Notes due 2011, which mature on 
August I, 20 II and bear interest at a rate equal to LIBOR plus 7.5% per annum. During fiscal years 2008 and 2007, we 
purchased $12.8 million and $12.0 million, respectively, of aggregate principal amount of Floating Rate Notes due 2011, plus 
accrued interest, from noteholders for amounts less than face value. As of June 30, 2009, we had $165.2 million aggregate 
principal amount of Floating Rate Notes due 2~ 11 outstanding. 

As a result of the Restructuring, we exchanged $158.8 million aggregate principal amount of Floating Rate Notes due 2011 for 
$26.7 million of cash, $67.8 million aggregate principal amount ofFixed Rate Notes due 2014 and 33,940,683 shares of newly 

·authorized Class A Common Stock. Holders of$6.4 million aggregate principal amount of Floating Rate Notes due 2011 did 
not tender their notes pursuant to the Restructuring. These Floating Rate Notes due 2011 will remain on our consolidated 
balance sheets until their maturity date in August 2011 unless acquired or retired by us at an earlier date. The indenture 
governing the Floating Rate Notes due 2011 was amended to eliminate substantially all ofthe restrictive covenants and certain 
events of default from such indenture. 

The weighted-average interest rate for the Floating Rate Notes due 2011 was 8.26% and 10.02% for fiscal years 2010 and 
2009, respectively. We have entered into interest rate swap agreements to hedge the floating rate interest expense on the 
Floating Rate Notes due 20] 1. Refer to Item 7A of this Annual Report for additional commentary regarding our management 
of interest rate risk and the interest rate swaps. 

Summary of Contractual Obligations 

The following table discloses aggregate information about our contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of 
June 30, 2010: 
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Contractual Obligation Amounts Maturing In 
Less Than 

1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years Thereafter Total 
(in thousands) 

Fixed Rate Notes due 2014 (I) $ $ $ 67,293 $ $ 67,293 
Floating Rate Notes due 20 II (2) 6,413 6,413 
Operating leases (3) 590 916 472 605 2,583 
Capacity charge commitments (4) 7,068 7,068 
Natural gas physical purchase commitments (5) 38,392 38,392 
Electricity physical purchase commitments (5) 7,319 382 7,701 

Total $ 53,369 $ 7,711 $ 67,765 $ 605 $ 129,450 

(1) Includes the aggregate principal amount under the Fixed Rate Notes due 2014. Excludes related unamortized discount of 
$14.9 million as of June 30, 2010. 

(2) Includes the aggregate principal amount under the Floating Rate Notes due 2011. Excludes related unamortized discount 
ofless than $0.1 million as of June 30, 2010. 

(3) Includes amounts anticipated to be paid for leased office space under non-cancelable operating leases, which contain 
escalation clauses, have terms that expire between July 2010 and October 2017 and are subject to extension at the option 
of the Company. We take into account all escalation clauses when detennining the amount of future minimum lease 
payments. All future minimum lease payments are recognized on a straight-line basis over the minimum lease term. 

(4) Includes anticipated fees associated with agreements to transpon and store natural gas. These agreements are take-or-pay 
in that we must pay for the capacity committed even if we do not use the capacity. 

(5) Includes both fixed and variable portions of physical forward contracts. The variable portion is indexed as the NYMEX 
settle price for the corresponding delivery month in which the natural gas is purchased. The estimated contractual 
obligations are based on the NYMEX forward curve as of June 30, 2010 for all corresponding delivery months. 

At June 30, 2010, $34.0 million of letters of credit were outstanding under the Commodity Supply Facility, which were posted 
. as (.ollatcralllllut:;t various tJansportation and storage agreements. As of June 30, 2010, all outstanding letlt:rs uf c..;Jt:llil wen: 

scheduled to mature during fiscal 2011. New letters of credit are expected to be issued as necessary to meet collateral 
requirements during fiscal year 2011. 

Under the Commodity Supply Facility, we are obligated to purchase a minimum of 130,000,000 MMBtus of natural gas from 
RBS Sempra, for physical delivery in accordance with the following schedule: (I) 39,000,000 MMBtus during the first 
contract year; (2) 44,000,000 MMBtus during the second contract year; and (3) 47,000,000 MMBtus during the third contract 
year. In addition, we are obligated to purchase a minimum of 1,850,000 MWhrs of electricity from RBS Sempra, for physical 
delivery in accordance with the following schedule: (1) 500,000 MWhrs during the first contract year; (2) 650,000 MWhrs 
during the second contract year; and (3) 700,000 MWhrs during the third contract year. The estimated total value of these 
purchases will depend upon the market price of natural gas at the time of purchase. During fiscal year 2010, our average price 
paid for natural gas ranged from a high of approximately $6.40 per MMBtu in January 2010 to a low of approximately $2.80 
per MMBtu in September 2009, and our average price paid for electricity ranged from a high of approximately $82.60 per 
MWhr in January 2010 to a low of approximately $64.60 per MWhr in March 2010. 

The Company will be obligated to pay a volumetric fee for any unused balance ofthe minimum volume purchase requirement 
for any contract year, or ifthe agreement is tenninated prior to the end of the contract. As of June 30, 2010, commodity that 
we expect to purchase for delivery to our customers during the first and second contract years ofthe Commodity Supply 
Facility is expected to exceed the minimum purchase obligation for natural gas and electricity. The excess of actual 
commodity purchases from RBS Sempra over the minimum purchase requirement for any contract year, if any, will be 
deducted from the minimum purchase requirement for the subsequent contract year. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

We did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as of June 30, 2010 or 2009. 

Critical Accounting Policies 
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The preceding discussion and analysis of OUf financial condition and results of operating results are based on our consolidated 
financial statements, which have been prepared in confonnity with U.S. GAAP. The significant accounting policies used in 
the preparation of our consolidated financial statements are more fully described in the consolidated financial statements 
included in Item 8 of this Annual Report. 

Many of OUf significant accounting policies require complex judgments to estimate values of assets and liabilities. In making 
these judgments, management must make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, revenues and expenses. Because changes in such estimates and assumptions could significantly affect our reported 
financial position and results of operations, detailed policies and control procedures have been established to ensure that 
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valuation methods, including judgments made as part of such methods, are well controlled, independently reviewed, and are 
applied consistently from period to period. 

On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, which are based on historical experience, weather data, tenns of existing 
customer contracts, and various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Our actual 
results may differ from these estimates and assumptions. 

Of the significant policies used to prepare our consolidated financial statements, the items discussed below require critical 
accounting estimates involving a high degree of judgment and complexity. For all ofthese critical policies, we caution that 
future events rarely develop exactly as forecasted, and the best estimates routinely require adjustment. This information should 
be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements included herein. 

Revenue Recognition 

We recognize revenue from the sale of natural gas and electricity in the period in which customers consume the commodity. 
Our customers are billed monthly on various dates throughout the month. We accrue revenues for natural gas and electricity 
consumed by customers, but not yet billed. under the cycle billing method. Total unbilled revenue was $17.4 million and 
$16.3, million at June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, 

Our estimates of unbilled revenues are determined by considering the following factors: 

• estimates of commodity volume consumed by customers during a calendar month; 
• the average sales price per unit for each respective market area and customer class; 
• commodity volumes delivered to the LDC during the calendar month; 
• timing of billings· completed under thc cycle billing method; and 
• impact of previous unbilled accounts receivable accruals. 

Unbilled revenue estimates are adjusted to actual billings in subsequent periods when the meters are read and any change in 
previous estimates is reflected in operations during the period that the change is determined. Unbilled revenue recognition is 
considered to be a critical accounting policy because estimates of commodity volumes consumed by customers are dependent 
upon various factors. including: 

• Weather condition~ and customer usage profiles ltavt! a diltct impCJct on the cOllsumption ofna1ural gas and 
electricity by our customers. The projected impact of current weather conditions on customer usage profiles utilized 
in our estimates may differ from historical averages. 

• Other factors. such as economic conditions in a market area. the prices charged to customers for natural gas and 
electricity consumed and natural or man-made disasters that can limit the availability of natural gas and electricity, 
can have a significant impact on customer consumption. 

We can never be certain how retail energy customers will respond to weather conditions or other factors that are outside of our 
control. As a result, actual consumption may differ significantly from our estimates, which could result in significant 
adjustments to revenue in the month of <'true-up." 

Allowance/or Doubtful Accounts 

We assume the credit risk associated with non-payment by our customers in markets where LDCs do not guarantee customer 
accounts receivable. In those markets, we record an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the age of accounts receivable, 
customer payment history. past loss experience and current market conditions. The allowance for doubtful accounts and 
provision for doubtful accounts are summarized in the following table. 

(in thousands) 

Non-guaranteed accounts receivable from customers at period-end $ 28,754 $ 37,226 ;::.$_,"52:;,,:;,87~1 

Allowance for doubtful accounts at period-end $ 5,074 $ 7,344 ;::.$_~5;;,,~15~4 

Allowance for doubtful accounts as a percentage of non-guaranteed 
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accounts receivable at period end 17.6% 19.7% 9.7% 

Provision for doubtful accounts for the period ;;;.$ =.;;;5,~16~4 $ 12,009;;;.$ =.;;;5',;;;05~0 
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We recognize that there is a high degree of subjectivity and imprecision inherent in the process of estimating future credit 
losses that are based on historical trends and customer data. Critical factors that could impact the recorded level of allowances 
for doubtful accounts include: 

• the concentration of our business in non-guaranteed markets, such as Georgia and Texas; 
• economic conditions in our markets, which may deteriorate and impact the ability of our customers to pay their 

balances owed to us when due; 
• the seasonality of our business; and 
• our cost of commodity, which affects our pricing for commodity supplied to customers. 

We are also subject to credit risk associated with the creditworthiness ofLDCs that guarantee customer accounts receivable 
balances. Although all of the LDCs that guarantee our customer accounts receivable had investment grade credit ratings as of 
June 30, 2010, any detrimental change in the creditworthiness of these LDCs could affect their ability to pay us amounts when 
due, and may result in the need for higher allowances and provisions for doubtful accounts. 

]n addition, we may bear credit risk related to imbalance settlement receivables from LDCs and ISOs, to the extent that such 
LDCs and ISOs are unable to collect imbalance settlements payable to them by other retail marketers. We record an 
allowance for doubtful accounts during the month that full collection of any such imbalance receivable balance becomes 
doubtful. Therefore, the creditworthiness of other retail marketers, which is difficult to predict and monitor, may also impact 
our allowance and provision for doubtful accounts. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill of $3.8 million on our consolidated balance sheet represents the excess of purchase price over the fair value of 
identifiable nct :1ssets acquired from SESCo in Allgust-2006. Goodwill has been assigned entirely to the natural gas business 
segment since the customers acquired from SESCo were natural gas accounts. 

Goodwill is not amortized, but is reviewed for impainnent annually at June 30 or more frequently if events, transactions or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. We utilize a combination of methods to 
estimate the fair value of our natural gas reporting unit, including a discounted cash flows methodology for near-term 
estimable earnings and a discounted multiple of earnings methodology to estimate a terminal value. Critical assumptions used 
for the fair value model include: 

• earnings forecasts for the natural gas business segment, which reflect assumptions for growth in natural gas RCEs 
(net of attrition), expected gross profit and expense trends; 

• a tenninal value multiple; and 
• the discount rate used to calculate the present value of future cash flows. 

Our impairment testing of goodwill is considered to be a critical accounting estimate due to the significant judgment required 
for certain assumptions utilized in the models to determine fair value. Assumptions used involve a high degree of subjectivity 
that is based on historical experience and internal forecasts of future results. Actual results in future periods may not 
necessarily approximate historical experience or forecasts. 

We completed our annual goodwill impairment test as of June 30, 2010, and concluded that the goodwill assigned to the 
natural gas business segment was not at risk for impairment as ofthat date. As of June 30, 2010, the estimated fair value of 
the natural gas business segment was more than double its carrying value. 

Customer Acquisition Costs, net 

The Company capitalizes costs associated with the acquisition of customers to the extent that they are incremental direct costs 
and that such costs can be recovered from the future economic benefit resulting from the customer relationship. The Company 
acquires customers as a result ofthe following activities: 

• bulk acquisitions and business combinations; 
• payments to third-party contractors for success-based marketing activities; 
• payments to third-party contractors for hourly paid direct-response telemarketing activities. 
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Financial information regarding our customer acquisition costs is summarized in the following table. 

Total customer acquisition costs, net of accumulated 
amortization, at period-end $ 30,425 $ 27,950 $ 41,693 

Customer acquisition costs capitalized during the period (1) $ 22,289 $ 16,034 $ 19,555 

Amortization of customer acquisition costs during the period $ 19,814 $ 29,777 $ 23,414 

Customer acquisition costs are capitalized and amortized over the estimated life ofa customer, which we generally estimate to 
be three years. Customer acquisition costs that are subject to amortization are reviewed for recoverability quarterly. or 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

OUf model used to assess the estimated recoverability of customer acquisition costs includes estimates of the future cash flows 
expected to result from the use of the customer assets and their eventual disposition. The estimated fair value resulting from 
this model is compared with the carrying amount of the asset. If impairment were to be identified, it could result in additional 
expense recorded in our consolidated statement of operations. Estimation of future cash flows includes consideration of 
specific assumptions for customer attrition, per unit gross profit, and operating costs. The estimate of future cash flows is 
considered to be a critical estimate because the assumptions used involve a high degree of subjectivity and are based on 
historical experience and internal forecasts of future results. Actual results in future periods may not necessarily approximate 
histo~ical e.xperience or forecasts. As of June 30, 2010, the estimated future cash flows from our customer relationships. 
significantly exceeded the carrying value of customer acquisition costs. Management believes that the carryfng value of 
customer acquisition costs is not at risk of impairment as of June 30, 2010. 

The average three-year life ofa customer is also considered to be a critical assumption because it is an estimate of the expected 
period over which an average customer will provide us with cash flows. If competitive market conditions were to deteriorate 
for us, customer attrition could increase, which could result in a lower average life of a customer. 

As a result of all quarterly reviews conducted for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, we have concluded that there was no 
impairment to the carrying value of customer acquisition costs recorded on our consolidated balance sheets. 

Income Taxes 

We operate within multiple tax jurisdictions. The calculations ofincome tax expense or benefit and related balance sheet 
amounts involve a high degree of management judgment regarding estimates of the timing and probability of recognition of 
revenue and deductions. The interpretation of tax laws involves uncertainty, since tax authorities may interpret laws 
differently than we do. We are subject to audit in all of our tax jurisdictions, which may involve complex issues and may 
require an extended period oftime to resolve. Ultimate resolution of tax matters may result in favorable or unfavorable 
impacts to our net income and/or cash flows. In management's opinion, adequate reserves have been recorded for any future 
taxes that may be owed as a result of examination by any taxing authority. 

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities 
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes using enacted tax rates expected to be in effect 
for the year in which the temporary differences are expected to reverse. 

Total combined current and long-term deferred income tax assets were $33.2 million and $46.8 million at June 30, 2010 and 
2009, respectively. Our policy is to establish a valuation allowance ifit is "more likely than not" that the related tax benefits 
will not be realized. At June 30. 2010. we determined that it was "more likely than not" that a portion of our deferred tax 
assets would not be realized. 

As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, we had $3.2 million and $18.7 million, respectively, of deferred tax assets related to unrealized 
losses from risk management activities. We anticipate that these deferred tax assets will be realized in future periods when 
sales of related fixed price commodities occur. Therefore, we did not establish a valuation allowance for these deferred tax 
assets at June 30, 2010. 

For our remaining deferred tax assets, which totaled $30.0 million and $28.1 million at June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, 
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we determined based on available evidence, including historical financial results for the last three years, that it is "more likely 
than not" that a portion of these items may not be recoverable in the future. Accordingly. at June 30, 2010 and 2009, we 
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recorded total valuation allowances of approximately $28.1 million and $22.7 million, respectively, as a reduction of deferred 
tax assets. The valuation allowance represented 94% and 81% ofrelated deferred tax assets as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, 
respectively. 

The valuation allowance related to deferred tax assets is considered to be a critical estimate because, in assessing the 
likelihood of realization of deferred tax assets, management considers taxable income trends and forecasts. Actual income 
taxes expensed and/or paid could vary from estimated amounts due to the impacts of various factors, including: 

• changes to tax laws by taxing authorities; 
• final review of filed tax returns by taxing authorities; and 
• actual financial condition and results of operations for future periods that could differ from forecasted amounts. 

Derivatives 

We utilize both physical commodity contracts and financial derivative instruments to reduce our exposure to fluctuations in the 
price of natural gas and electricity. Settlements of derivative instruments are recognized on a monthly basis, generally based 
upon the difference between the contract price and the settlement price as quoted on NYMEX, relevant ISO or other published 
sources. Derivative instruments are carried on the balance sheet at fair value. Any changes in fair value are adjusted through 
unrealized losses (gains) from risk management activities in the consolidated statements of operations. This accounting results 
in significant volatility in earnings due to the impact market prices have on the market positions and derivative instruments 
that we have entered into. 

Where available, we use quoted market prices to determine fair value. If quoted market prices are not available, management 
seeks price information from external sources, including broker quotes and industry publications. When evaluating pricing 
information provided by brokers and other pricing services, we consider whether the broker is willing and able to enter into 
transaction at the quoted price, whether the quotes are based on an active market, or, if the quotes are based on an inactive 
market, the extent to which bmkers are utilizing a particular model if pricing is not available. 

If pricing information from external sources is not available, or if we believe that observable pricing information is not 
indicative of fair value, management judgment is required to develop estimates of fair value. In these cases, fair value is 
determined using internally developed valuation models based on inputs that are either directly observable or derived from and 
corroborated by market data. These unobservable inputs incorporate market participants' assumptions about risks in the asset 
or li~bjlity and the risk premium required by market participants in 0Tdrr to bf'ar the risks. Otlr assets ~nrlli~lJiljtie" thM ~e 
reported at fair value are measured based on quoted market prices and observable market-based or independently-sourced 
inputs. 

We generally utilize a market approach for our recurring fair value measurements. In forming our fair value estimates, we 
maximize the use of observable inputs for the respective valuation modeL For reporting purposes we classifY our fair value 
measurements according to the hierarchy summarized in Note 15 ofthe consolidated financial statements located in Item 8 of 
this Annual Report. Ifa fair value measurement reflects inputs from different levels within the fair value hierarchy, the 
measurement is classified based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The key inputs 
and assumptions utilized for the fair value measurements recorded by the Company are summarized as fol1ows: 

Financial natural gas derivative contracts - NYMEX-referenced swaps are valued utilizing unadjusted market commodity 
quotes from a pricing service, which are considered to be quotes from an active market, but are deemed to be Level 2 inputs 
because the swaps are not an identical instrument to the NYMEX-referenced commodity. Basis swaps and options are 
generally valued using observable broker quotes. Other inputs and assumptions include contract position volume, price 
volatility, commodity delivery location, credit quality of the Company and of derivative counterparties, credit enhancements, if 
any, and time value. 

Financial electricity derivative contracts - Electricity swaps are valued utilizing market commodity quotes from a pricing 
service, which are deemed to be observable inputs. Other inputs and assumptions include contract position volume, price 
volatility, commodity delivery location, credit quality of the Company and of derivative counterparties, credit enhancements, if 
any, and time value. 

Physical forward natural gas and electricity derivative contracts - The Company utilizes market commodity quotes from a 
pricing service to value these instruments, which are deemed to be observable inputs. Other inputs and assumptions include 
contract position volume. commodity delivery location, credit quality ofthe Company and of derivative counterparties, credit 
enhancements, if any. and time value. 
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Interest rate ~WQPS -Interest rate swaps are valued utilizing quotes received directly from swap counterparties. Key inputs 
and assumptions include interest rate curves, credit quaJity of the Company and of derivative counterparties, credit 
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enhancements, if any, and time value. 

The assumptions used for these pricing models are considered to be critical estimates due to the high level of management 
judgment utilized in their development. In particular, imprecision in estimating unobservable market inputs can impact the 
amount of unrealized gains or losses from risk management activities recorded on our consolidated balance sheets and our 
consolidated statements of operations for a particular financial instrument. Furthermore, while we believe our valuation 
methods are appropriate, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial 
assets and liabilities could result in a different estimate offair value at the reporting date. 

We have implemented risk management controls and limits to monitor our risk position related to derivatives, including a 
V AR analysis to assess potential losses in the fair value of our natural gas portfolio and to ensure that hedging performance is 
in line with agreed-upon objectives. Refer to Item 7 A of this Annual Report for additional information. 

Common Stock Valuation 

Prior to the Restructuring, we utilized an internal stock valuation model to calculate appropriate values for redeemable 
preferred stock, stock options and warrants granted under our stock-based compensation plans and common stock issued 
directly to our executive officers and third parties. In connection with the Restructuring, we utilized our stock valuation model 
to assign value to all classes of common stock issued to holders of our debt, RBS Sempra, former holders of our redeemable 
preferred stock and holders of our common stock outstanding prior to the Restructuring. Subsequent to the Restructuring, we 
utilized our stock valuation model to calculate an appropriate value for RSUs granted to our directors, a former director and 
certain of our senior executives. 

As our common stock is not publicly traded, there is no readily-available market source of information to estimate its fair 
F value. Therefore, we utilize an)nternal stock valuation model in order to calculate the grant-date fair value for stock-based 

compensation awards. At a minimum, we complete the stock valuation model on a quarterly basis, as of September 30th , 

December 31 st , March 31 st and June 30th of each fiscal year. For the June 30th model, we contract with an independent 
valuation company to calculate a fair value at that date. For the remaining quarter-end valuation dates, we utilize an internal 
valuation model that closely resembles the methodology utilized by the independent valuation company as ofthe previous 
June 30th valuation date. The grant date stock value assigned to stock compensation awards is generally determined from our 
most recently completed quarter-end valuation model, unless any matters arose during the time between the most recent 
quarter-end model and the grant date that would have had a material impact on the stock valuation. 

" Key estimates and assumptions used in our stock v"aluation models include: 

• revenue and expense forecasts and assumed earnings multiples based on comparable companies; and 
• a discount rate applied to the future cash flows assumed to result from future earnings. 

The assumptions utilized in the stock valuation model require significant management judgment. Revenue and expense 
forecasts include assumptions that involve a high degree of subjectivity and are based on historical experience and internal 
forecasts of future results. There can be no assurance that actual future earnings will approximate these estimates. 

New Accounting Pronouncements Adopted During the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010 

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the "FASB") issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 168, "The F ASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles - a 
replacement of F ASB Statement No. 162" ("SF AS No. 168"). Effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual 
periods ending after September 15,2009, the Accounting Standards Codification (the "ASC") supersedes all existing 
accounting and reporting standards, excluding those issued by the SEC, and is now the single source of authoritative u.S. 
GAAP for entities that are not SEC registrants. Rules and interpretative releases of the SEC are also sources of U.S. GAAP 
for SEC registrants. The Company adopted the provisions of SF AS No. 168 effective for the financial statements" included in 
this Form 10-K. The adoption of SF AS No. 168, as codified by ASC Topic 105, "Generally Accepted Accounting Principles," 
impacted the Company's financial statement disclosures, but did not have any effect on its financial position or results of 
operations. 

Effective July 1,2009, the Company adopted ASC guidelines regarding accounting and reporting for business combinations 
that are consummated after July 1,2009. These guidelines include certain changed principles and requirements related to: 
(1) recognition and measurements of identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed, goodwill acquired, any gain from a 
bargain purchase, and any noncontrolling interest in an acquired company; (2) application issues relating to accounting and 
disclosures for assets and liabilities arising from contingencies in a business combination; and (3) disclosures regarding 
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combination transactions consummated after July 1,2009, if any. The Company did not consummate any business 
combination transactions during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. 

In August 2009, the F ASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2009-05, "Fair Value Measurements and 
Disclosures" ("ASU 2009-05"). ASU 2009-05 amends ASC Topic 820, "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures" by 
providing additional guidance clarifying the measurement of liabilities at fair value. The amendments prescribed by ASU 
2009-05 became effective for the Company's quarterly reporting period ending December 31, 2009 and did not have any 
impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations. 

In February 2010, the F ASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2010-09, "Subsequent Events (Topic 855) ~ 
Amendments to Certain Recognition and Disclosure Requirements" ("ASU 2010-09"). ASU 2010-09 amends ASC Topic 
855, "Subsequent Events," by clarifying the scope of disclosure requirements related to subsequent events. The amendments 
prescribed by ASU 2010-09 became effective for the Company's quarterly reporting period ending March 31, 2010 and did 
not have any impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations. 

In January 2010, the F ASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2010-06 ("ASU 2010-06"), which amends FASB ASC 
Topic 820, "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures." The amended guidance in ASU 2010-06 requires entities to disclose 
additional information regarding assets and liabilities that are transferred between levels of the fair value hierarchy. ASU 
2010-06 also requires that required Level 3 disclosures regarding purchases, sales, issuances and settlements be reported on a 
gross basis. ASU 2010-06 clarifies existing guidance pertaining to the level of disaggregation at which fair value disclosures 
should be made and the requirements to disclose infonnation about the valuation techniques and inputs used in estimating 
Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The amended guidance in ASU 2010-06 pertaining to disclosure of transfers 
between levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level of disaggregation of disclosures and disclosure of valuation techniques and 
inputs used in estimating Level 2 and Level 3 measurements became effective and were adopted for the Company's quarterly 
reporting period ending March 31, 2010. 

The requirement to disclose Level 3 purchases, sales, issuances and settlements on a gross basis will become effective for 
fiscal years (and for interim periods within those fiscal years) beginning after December 15,2010. The Company intends to 
adopt these provisions effective for its quarterly reporting period ending September 30, 2011. 

Risk Management 

Overview 

Some degree of risk is inherent in virtually all of our activities. As a result of our business growth into new markets and 
increased complexity of our operating infrastructure, we continuously review and, where necessary, upgrade our risk 
management policies and systems. The objectives of our risk management policies and systems include: 

• Timely identification of various risks associated with our business; 
• Assessment of potential costs that can be considered in relation to expected rewards from taking such risks; 
• Development and/or acquisition of adequate protections against identified risks; 
• Appropriate monitoring and disclosure of risks to all concerned parties; and 
• Development of adequate staff training programs regarding compliance with relevant laws, regulations, internal 

policies and procedures and established systems of internal controls. 

Risk management oversight begins with our Board of Directors and its committees, principally the Audit Committee and the 
Risk Oversight Committee. The Audit Committee consists of four members of the Board of Directors and is chaired by an 
independent director. The Audit Committee meets with our outside auditors shortly after the end of each quarterly and year
end reporting period and reviews and approves all financial reports filed with the SEC. 

The Risk Oversight Committee is chaired by an independent director and includes four additional directors. The Risk 
Oversight Committee meets at least quarterly, and as often as necessary, to ensure that we have adhered to established risk 
management policies, to review our risk management activities and positions and to address any changes to policies or 
activities that may be necessary. We also have an independent risk management department that is responsible for monitoring 
and enforcing risk management policies related to commodities hedging activities. 

Market Risk Management 

Market risks result primarily from changes in commodity prices and interest rates. In the normal course of business, we also 
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Our primary market risk management objective is to maintain volume and price neutrality by using physical supply, storage 
and commodity derivatives to mitigate market risks resulting from changes in commodity prices and interest rates. Our risk 
management policies are reviewed at least annually to ensure that material risks associated with ongoing market risks, new 
products, asset acquisitions and other changes in our risk profile are adequately addressed. 

Refer to Item 7A of this Annual Report for additional commentary regarding market risks. 

Liquidity Risk Management 

Liquidity risk is the risk that we would be unable to meet our obligations as they become due or unable to fund business 
growth because of an inability to liquidate assets or obtain adequate funding. Under the oversight of the Audit Committee, 
liquidity is managed by the CFO to provide the ability to generate cash to fund current operating, investing and financing 
activities and to manage the cost of purchases of natural gas and electricity at a reasonable cost in a reasonable amount oftime, 
while maintaining routine operations and market confidence. The following strategies and processes are utilized to manage 
liquidity: 

• Utilize our hedging strategy to reduce the impact of volatile commodity prices - We have a risk management 
policy that is intended to reduce our financial exposure related to changes in the price of natural gas and electricity. 
Under this policy, we hedge anticipated natural gas and electricity commodity purchases required to meet expected 
customer demand for all accounts served under fixed price contracts. As of June 30, 2010, we utilized the 
Commodity Supply Facility as our exclusive natural gas and electricity hedge facility. 

• Utilize our credit facilities to provide liquidity for operating requirements - Under the Commodity Supply Facility, 
we have a ready source of liquidity, primarily in the form of letters of credit used for collateral to be placed with 
hedge counterparties, commodity suppliers and providers of transportation and storage services. As of June 30, 2010, 
we believe that the Commodity Supply Facility will be adequate to supplement cash provided by operations for 
meeting our operational liquidity needs for fiscal year 2011. 

• Maximize pricing opportunities within the markets that we serve - We strive to offer products and prices that are 
competitive within the markets we serve and allow us to realize a reasonable gross profit per MMBtu or MWhr sold. 
Maximizing our gross profit is crucial to our overall financial success and liquidity position. 

• .Muxi",jze cash collections from LDCs and customers - During fi$:;a! y{,ar 2010, approximately 49% of our total 
sales of natural gas and electricity were within markets that guarantee customer accounts receivable. The LDCs in 
these markets have credit ratings that are investment grade. We monitor the payment histories, credit ratings and 
other financial information for these LDCs in order to identify and address adverse trends, if any. As of June 30, 
2010, we do not maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts against receivables from these LDCs as we do not 
anticipate any material credit losses related to these receivables. 

For customer accounts receivable that are not guaranteed by LDCs, we have processes and information systems in 
place to ensure that appropriate amounts are billed and collected from our customers on a timely basis. We maintain 
an allowance for doubtful accounts against receivables from these customers, as we do not anticipate any material 
credit losses related to these receivables. Refer to Item 7 A of this Annual Report for additional commentary 
regarding credit risk. 

Operational and Compliance Risk Management 

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from fraud, unauthorized activities, errors, omissions, inefficiency, system failure or 
other external events. Operational risk is inherent throughout our business organization and covers a wide spectrum of issues. 

Compliance risk is the risk arising from failure to comply with relevant laws, regulations and regulatory requirements 
governing the conduct of our business. Failure to effectively identify and address various compliance risks can result in 
financial penalties and other regulatory sanctions, litigation, damage to reputation and loss of customers. 

Under the general oversight of our Board of Directors, CEO and CfO, operational and compliance risks are directly managed 
within the following functional areas of the organization: 

• Compliance and regulatory affairs; 
• Marketing and sales; 
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• Customer operations (including activities related to billing and collections, quality assurance related to various 
marketing programs and management of customer communications); 

• Financial accounting and reporting; 
• Tax accounting and reporting; 
• Legal counsel; and 
• Human Resources and payroll. 

Management within each of these areas is directly responsible for identification of risks, development of formal policies and 
procedures to manage such risks, and reporting any incidents, events or transactions, if any, where risks may not be adequately 
mitigated. Under the direction ofthe Audit Committee and the CFO, the Director ofIntemal Audit is responsible for 
investigating and addressing any such incidents, events or transactions for their impact on our overall risk management 
environment, on our internal control framework, and on the planning of internal audits. 

Fraud Risk 

We have a formal fraud risk assessment program, which is designed to facilitate: 

• Identification of potential fraud risks~ 
• Design ofintemal controls to address and mitigate the fraud risks identified; 
• Periodic reviews of controls for effectiveness; and 
• Monitoring of corporate activities and formal reporting of potential incidents, if necessary, to senior management and 

the Board of Directors. 

Under the general oversight of the Audit Committee and the CFO, our Director ofInternal Audit is responsible for 
administering the fraud risk assessment program and reporting the results to the Audit Committee. 

Informntion Systems 

We maintain a number of information systems for capturing customer, accounting, supply forecasting and risk management 
information. The majority of our systems are hosted at an offsite data center in Houston, Texas, which maintains 2417 security 
and has stand-alone power generation to keep the data center functional in the case of an extended power outage. 

During fiscal year 2008, in conjunction with our hosting provider, we launched an initiative to modernize our key server 
infrastructure to increase reliability and to increase redundancy. During fiscal 2010, we continued to consolidate our multiple 
existing customer relationship management tools and multiple billing platforms. As of June 30, 2010, more than 95% of our 
customers had been consolidated into our primary strategic systems. We are also continuing to convert our demand 
forecasting and risk management operations to new or enhanced third party software systems. We are currently utilizing these 
systems and will continue to make enhancements during fiscal year 2011. 

We perform daily backup of our key servers and maintain backup tapes for a period of four weeks before they are overwritten. 
We also perform a month-end backup of key servers and keep such data for a period of six months to one year. All backup 
tapes are stored offsite at a secure storage facility. We currently replicate our email and various other production servers to 
ensure availability of our critical systems. We are in the process of increasing this functionality to additional servers. 

We have taken a multi-tiered approach to protecting our network from malware and intrusions. We employ endpoint security 
that includes locked-down routers, dual firewalls, and other security appliances. These are supplemented with anti-spyware 
and virus protection on al1 workstations and windows servers. These applications are monitored and updated to respond pro
actively and successfully to changing threats. 

Our corporate website has been custom-developed by an outsourced marketing company. We host our corporate website 
onsite with an employee of the Company serving as our webmaster. 

Business Continuity Planning 

We are committed to the protection of our employees, customers, shareholders, physical buildings, information systems and 
corporate records. Our disaster recovery plan and the geographic distance between our offices mitigate the risk of catastrophic 
interruption of our business. 
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ITEM 7 A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

Commodity Price Risk 

Commodity price risk is the risk of exposure to fluctuations in the price of natural gas and electricity. Because our contracts 
require that we deliver full commodity requirements to our customers and because our customers' usage is impacted by factors 
such as weather, we are exposed to fluctuations in customer load requirements. We typically purchase commodity equal to 
expected customer consumption assuming normal weather patterns. We may purchase additional commodity volumes for the 
summer in the case of electricity and for the winter in the case of natural gas in order to protect against a potential demand 
increase in peak seasons. As a result ofthe natural swing in customer consumption related to weather changes, we may have 
to buy or sell additional volumes, and therefore may be exposed to price volatility in that event. We utilize various hedging 
strategies in order to mitigate the risk associated with potential volumetric variability of our monthly deliveries for fixed priced 
customers. 

We utilize the following instruments to offset price risk associated with volume commitments under fixed and variable price 
contracts where the price to the customer must be established ahead of the index settlement: (1) for natural gas: NYMEX
referenced gas swaps, basis swaps, physical commodity hedges and physical basis hedges; and (2) for electricity: ISO zone 
specific swaps, basis swaps, physical hedges and physical basis hedges. 

Economic hedges are also utilized to cover inventory injection and withdrawal as well as to cover utility over/under delivery 
obligations. For fixed price customers, both inventory and imbalances caused by utility over/under delivery obligations are 
hedged using derivatives or physical hedges. For variable price customers, inventory is generally hedged using derivative 
instruments or physical commodity hedges and utility imbalances are hedged either through the utilization of derivatives, 
physical hedges, or through a monthly price adjustment as published and billed to the customer each month. The fair values of 
these hedges, which are recorded in unrealized gains (losses) from risk management activities on the consolidated balance 
sheet, will settle during each specific month to mirror our planned injections and withdrawals, as well as over/under delivery 
obligations. 

The natural gas swap instruments are generally settled with respect to each delivery month against the final settlement price 
detennined on the last trading day ofthe Henry Hub futures contract listed for such month on the NYMEX. In the case of 
electricity swap instruments, settlement is based on ISO settlement prices during the month. Natural gas basis swaps are 
typically settled against the first ofthe month published index prices at various trading points that relate to locations where we 
have customer obligations. Basis swaps are priced based on the NYMEX settlement price on the last trading day ofthe futures 
contract delivery month plus or minus an agreed-upon premium or discount. All of the natural gas and electricity swaps have 
been executed "over-the-counter" on a bilateral basis under the Commodity Supply Facility. We also enter into financial 
swaps with other counterparties in order to meet electricity requirements. These are settled based on the index price for the 
appropriate ISO. We only execute financial swaps with entities with investment grade credit ratings. As of June 30, 2010, 
our hedge positions extended through March 2013. 

We have adopted a risk management policy to measure and limit market and credit risk associated with our customer 
portfolio. The risk policy requires that we maintain a balanced position at all times and does not pennit speculative trading. 
None of our employees are compensated on the basis of his or her trading activities. In marketing products to residential and 
small commercial customers, we hedge in advance of anticipated contract sales (adjusted to reflect attrition). When marketing 
to larger commercial accounts, the hedge is executed at the time of the contract sale. Our current risk policy requires that the 
following exposures be promptly mitigated: (1) for natural gas, any exposure in excess of$1.0 million related to the 
volumetric difference between commitments to deliver natural gas to customers and the related hedge positions must be 
brought back in compliance within three business days; and (2) for electricity, any exposure greater than $750,000 related to 
the volumetric difference between commitments to deliver electricity to customers and related hedge positions must be 
brought back in compliance within three business days. 

In order to address the potential volume variability of future deliveries, we utilize various hedging strategies to mitigate our 
exposure. For natural gas, hedging tools may include: (i) over-hedging winter volume obligations in certain markets by up to 
10% in order to provide price and volume protection resulting from unexpected increases in demand or by purchasing calls; 
(ii) utilizing gas in storage to offset variability in winter demand; (iii) entering into options settled against daily basis prices 
published in an industry publication, for each day during some or all ofthe winter months, that protect against rising prices of 
additional daily volumes if demand increases; and (iv) purchasing put options to protect against falling prices if unused 
volume needs to be sold and to protect against customer attrition in excess ofthat historicaIly experienced. For electricity, 
hedging tools include: (i) over-hedging summer on-peak volume obligations by up to 10% or purchasing call options in order 
to provide price and volume protection from unexpected increases in demand during peak or "super-peak" hours; (ii) entering 
into load shape hedges to cover the inherent imbalance from a nonnal consumption curve that a block 
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hedge creates; and (iii) purchasing put options to protect against falling prices if unused volume needs to be sold and to protect 
against customer attrition in excess of that historically experienced. 

We utilize an internally developed modified variance/co-variance value-at-risk "VAR," model to estimate potential loss in the 
fair value of our natural gas portfolio. For our V AR model, we utilize the higher of lO-day and 3D-day NYMEX volatility on 
a 2 standard deviation basis (95.45% confidence level). During the three months ended September 30, 2008, volatility in 
natural gas prices resulted in unusually high potential losses in the fair value of our natural gas portfolio using this V AR 
model. 

The potential losses in the fixed price natural gas portfolio using our actual net open position at the end of each month during 
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 are summarized in the following table. Unusually high volatility in 
natural gas commodity prices during the final three months of fiscal year 2008 and the first six months of fiscal year 2009 
resulted in unusually high potential losses in the fair value of our natural gas portfolio during those periods using this V AR 
model. 

Potential loss during the period: 
Average 
Maximum 
Minimum 

2010 

$ 32 
71 

4 

Fiscal Year Ended 
2009 200. 

(in thousands) 

$ 120 $ 108 
624 366 

25 13 

There have been no material changes in our methodology or policies regarding commodity price risk management during the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. 

Credit Risk 

We are exposed to credit risk in our risk management activities. Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the 
nonperformance by a counterparty of its contractual obligations. Our fixed price positions are executed under agreements that 
include master netting arrangements, which mitigate outstanding credit exposure. Under the Commodity Supply Facility. our 
economic hedging activities are with a financial institution that has an investment grade credit rating. 

We also are exposed to credit risk iiI OUi sales activities. Doring fiscal year 2010. approximately 51% of our total sales of 
natural gas and electricity were within markets where LDCs do not guarantee customer accounts receivable while 49% of our 
total sales were within markets where LDCs guarantee customer accounts receivable at a weighted average discount rate of 
approximately 1 %. Such discount is the cost incurred to guarantee the customer accounts receivable. In cases where-the LDC 
guarantees customer accounts receivable, we are exposed only to the credit risk of the LDC. rather than that of our actual 
customers. We monitor the credit ratings ofLDCs and the parent companies ofLDCs that guarantee our customer accounts 
receivable. As of June 30. 2010, all of our customer accounts receivable in LDC-guaranteed markets were with LDCs with 
investment grade credit ratings. We also periodically review payment history and financial information for LDCs to ensure 
that we identifY and respond to any deteriorating trends. 

The allowance for doubtful accounts represents our estimate of potential credit losses associated with customer accounts 
receivable in markets where such receivables are not guaranteed by LDCs. We assess the adequacy of our allowance for 
doubtful accounts through review of the aging of customer accounts receivable and our assessment ofthe general economic 
conditions in the markets that we serve. Based upon our review as of June 30, 2010. we believe that the allowance for 
doubtful accounts is adequate to cover potential credit losses related to customer accounts receivable. 

We record a provision for doubtful accounts for the estimated total revenue that is not expected to be collected from customers 
in non-guaranteed markets. The following table provides a summary of the provision for doubtful accounts as a percentage of 
total sales of natural gas and electricity within these markets. 

Provision for doubtful accounts as a percentage of 
sales of natural gas and electricity in non
guaranteed markets during the period 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2010 2009 2008 

1.79% 2.79% 1.19% 
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During fiscal year 2009, we experienced deterioration of the aging of billed customer accounts receivable within certain of our 
markets, particularly in our largest natural gas market in Georgia, primarily due to: 

• generally weak economic conditions; and 
• incremental charge offs and reserves associated with customer accounts acquired from Catalyst in October 2008, 

which were higher than historical levels for previous purchase acquisitions, and which contributed significantly to a 
higher provision for doubtful accounts in our Georgia market. 

Credit environments generally stabilized in many of our markets during fiscal year 2010. Additionally, we initiated more 
stringent credit standards for our new and existing customers during fiscal year 2009, which resulted in generally higher credit 
quality in our customer portfolio during fiscal year 2010. We continue to closely monitor economic conditions and actual 
collections data within aU of our markets for signs of any negative long-term trends that could result in higher allowance 
requirements. 

There have been no material changes in our methodology or policies regarding credit risk management during the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2010. 

Interest Rate Risk 

We are exposed to risk from fluctuations in interest rates in connection with the Commodity Supply Facility and the Floating 
Rate Notes due 2011. We manage our exposure to interest rate fluctuations by utilizing interest rate swaps to effectively 
convert interest rate exposure from a variable rate to a fixed rate of interest. As of June 30, 2010, an $80.0 million swap was 
outstanding, which expires on August 1,2011. The fixed-for-floating swap effectively fixes the six-month LIBOR rate at 
5.72% per annum. During fiscal year 2010, the $80.0 million interest rate swap agreement was novated to RBS Sempra from 
the previous counterparty, as required by the terms of the Commodity Supply Facility. Such novation did not have any impact 
on our rights, obligations, risks or accounting methodology associated with the interest rate swap agreement. 

Under the Commodity Supply Facility, we are subject to variable interest rates in connection with cash borrowings and credit 
support, primarily in the form of letters of credit, provided by RES Sempra. As of June 30, 2010, approximately $34.0 million 
of letters of credit were outstanding under the Commodity Supply Facility, as well as $6.4 million aggregate principal amount 
of Floating Rate Notes due 2011. 

,As of June 30, 2010, based on the net exposure resulting from the interest rate swap, the letters of credit_outstanding und~r thl" 
Commodity Supply Facility and the outstanding balance of Floating Rate Notes due 2011, the impact of a 1 % change in 
interest rates on interest expense for a twelve-month period is approximately $0.4 million. 

We have not designated interest rate swaps as hedges and, accordingly, changes in the market value of the interest rate swaps 
are charged directly to interest expense. At June 30, 2010, the total unrealized loss from risk management activities recorded 
on the consolidated balance sheets related to interest rate swaps was approximately $6.0 million. As of June 30, 2010, we 
posted $6.0 million of cash as collateral against our mark-to-market exposure related to the outstanding interest rate swap 
agreement. 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
MXenergy Holdings Inc. 

Page 112 of244 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets ofMXenergy Holdings Inc. as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, and 
the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period 
ended June 30, 2010. These financial statements are the responsibility ofthe Company's management. OUf responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Company's internal control over 
financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial 
position ofMXenergy Holdings Inc. at June 30, 2010, and 2009, and the consolidated results ofits operations and its cash 
flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2010, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

151 Ernst & Young LLP 
Stamford, Connecticut 
September 28, 2010 
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MXENERGY HOLDINGS INC. 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 
Fixed Rate Notes Escrow Account (Note 17) 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
(dollars in thousands) 

Accounts receivable from customers and LDCs, net (Note 6) 
Accounts receivable, net - RBS Sempra (Note 16) 
Natural gas inventories (Note 7) 
Current portion of unrealized gains from risk management activities, net (Notes 14 and 

15) 
Income taxes receivable 
Deferred income taxes (Note 12) 
Other current assets (Note II) 

Total current assets 
Goodwill (Note 8) 
Customer acquisition costs, net (Note 9) 
Fixed assets, net (Note 10) 
Deferred income taxes (Note 12) 
Deferred debt issuance costs (Notes 16 and 17) 
Other assets 
Total assets 

Liabilities and stockholders' equity 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 13) 
Current portion of unrealized losses from risk management activities, net (Notes 14 and 

15) 
Deferred revenue 
Denham Credit Facility (Note 22) 
Deferred income taxes (Note 12) 
Bridge Financing Loans payable (Note 20) 

Total current liabilities 
Unrealized losses from risk management activities, net (Notes 14 and 15) 
Long-term debt (Note 16) 
Total liabilities 

Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock (Note 18) 

Commitments and contingencies (Note 22) 

Stockholders' equity: 
Common stock (Note 19) 

Class A Common Stock (par value $0.0 I; 50,000,000 shares authorized; 33,940,683 
shares issued and 33,710,902 shares outstanding at June 30, 2010) 

Class B Common Stock (par value $0.01; 10,000,000 shares authorized; 4,002,290 
shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2010) 

Class C Common Stock (par value $0.01; 40,000,000 shares authorized; 16,413,159 
shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2010) 

Common stock (par value $0.01; 10,000,000 shares authorized; 4,681,219 shares 
issued and outstanding at June 30, 2009) 

Total common stock 
Additional paid-in capital 

$ 

$ 

$ 
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Balance at June 3D, 
2010 2009 

6,220 $ 
1,574 
8,977 

48,925 
43,054 
15,861 

6,063 
1,378 

16,272 
148,324 

3,810 
30,425 

2,739 
3,629 

12,552 
541 

202,020 $ 

30,302 $ 

16,731 
7,457 

54,490 
1,857 

58,722 
115,069 

339 

40 

164 

543 
139,702 

23,266 
75,368 

47,598 

29,415 

294 
6,461 
9,020 

12,084 
203,506 

3,810 
27,950 

3,728 
15,089 
4,475 

513 
259,071 

43,147 

34,224 
4,271 

12,000 

5,400 
99,042 
14,071 

163,476 
276,589 

54,632 

47 
47 

18,275 
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Class A treasury stock (229,781 shares at June 30, 2010; Note 19) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 
Accumulated deficit 

Total stockholders' equity 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 

The accompanying notes are an integral part a/these consolidatedjinancia{ statements. 
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(99) 
(156) (3) 

(53,039) (90,469) 
86,951 (72,150) 

202,020 $ 259.071 
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MXENERGY HOLDINGS INC. 
Consolidated Statements of Operations 

(dollars in thousands) 

Page 115 of244 

Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 
2010 2009 2008 

Sales of natural gas and electricity $ 561,206 $ 789,780 $ 752,283 
Cost of goods sold (excluding depreciation and amortization): 

Cost of natural gas and electricity sold 386,934 596,747 630,006 
Realized losses from risk management activities, net 48,211 72,824 6,747 
Unrealized (gains) losses from risk management activities, net (27,139) 87,575 (67,168) 

408,006 757,146 569,585 
Gross profit 153,200 32,634 182,698 

Operating expenses: 
General and administrative expenses 58,603 59,957 62,271 
Advertising and marketing expenses 3,749 2,117 4,546 
Reserves and discounts 7,495 15,130 7,130 
Depreciation and amortization 22,174 37,575 32,698 
Total operating expenses 92,021 114,779 106,645 

Operating profit (loss) 61,179 (82,145) 76,053 
Interest expense (net of interest income of$271, $430 and $3,806, 

respectively) 34,982 45,305 34,1()2 
Income (loss) before income tax (expense) benefit 26,197 (127,450) 41,948 
Income tax (expense) benefit (14,692) 27,249 (17,155) 
Net income (loss) $ 11,505 $ (100,201) $ 24,793 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidatedfinancial statements. 
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MXENERGY HOLDINGS INC. 
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity 

(dollars in thousands) 

Accumulated (Accumulated 
Common Additional Class A Unearned Other Deficit) Total 

Siock Paid-in Treasury Stock Comprehensive Retained Stockholders' 
{Par Value! Cnl!ital Stock ComEcnsation Loss Eamings Eguitl: 

Balance at June 30, 2007 , 34 , 21,367 S , (22) S (129) , 4,361 S 25,611 
Issuance of common stock 2 1,337 1,339 
Revaluation of Redeemable Convertible 

Prefem:d Stock (19,422) (19,422) 
Unamortized stock compensation (558) 558 
Purchase and cancellation of treasury ShilfCS (1,559) (1,559) 
Stock compensation expense 2,244 2,244 
Tax benefit on issuance of com mOl! stock 

from options 804 804 
Amortization of stock compensation (540) (540) 
Comprehensivc income (loss): 

Net incomc 24,793 24,793 
foreign currency translation (60) (60) 

Comprehensive income 24,733 

Bl!llance at June 30, 2008 36 23,635 (4) (189) 9,732 33,210 
Issuance of common stock II (II) 
Revaluation of Rcdecmable Convertible 

Preferred Stock (5,853) (5,853) 
Unamortized stock compensation (584) 584 
Purchase and cancellation of treasury sharcs (II) (II) 
Stock compensation expense 1,099 1,099 
Amortization of stock compensation (580) (580) 
Comprehensive income (loss): 

Net income (100,201) (100,201) 
Foreign eurrency translation 186 186 

Comprehensive income pOO,015) 

Balance at June 30, 2009 47 18,275 (3) (90,469) (72,150) 
Issuance of Class A Common Stock 339 81,468 81,807 
Issuance of Class B Common Stock 40 9,005 9,045 
]SSUBIlce of Class C Common Stock 164 28,591 28,755 
Acquisition of Class A treasury stock (99) (99) 
Cancellation of common stock (47) (47) 
Stock compensation expense 2,363 2,363 
Revaluation of redeemable convertible 

preferred stock 25,925 25,925 
Comprchensive income (loss): 

Net income 11,505 1I,50S 
Foreign currency translation (153) !J53) 

Comprehensive income 11,352 

Balance at June 30, 2010 S '43 S 139,702 S (99) , S (IS6) S (53,039) S 86,951 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidatedfinancial statements. 
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MXENERGY HOLDINGS INC. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

(dollars in thousands) 

Operating activities: 
Net income (loss) $ 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used 

in) operating activities: 
Unrealized losses (gains) from risk management activities 
Stock compensation expense 
Provision for doubtful accounts 
Depreciation and amortization 
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 
Non-cash interest expense, primarily unrealized losses on interest rate 

swaps and amortization of debt issuance costs 
Amortization of customer contracts acquired 
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions: 

Restricted cash 
Fixed Rate Notes Escrow Account 
Accounts receivable 
Accounts receivable, RBS Sempra 
Natural gas inventories 
Income taxes receivable 
Option premiums 
Other assets 
Customer acquisition costs 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Deferred revenue 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

Investing activities: 
Purchases or fixed assets 
Purchase of assets of Catalyst Natural Gas LLC assets 
Loan to PS Energy Group, Inc. related to purchase of GasKey assets 
Cash received from PS Energy Group, Inc. for repayment of loan 
Purchase of GasKey assets of PS Energy Group, Inc. 
Purchase of assets of Vantage Power Services L.P. 
Net cash used in investing activities 

Financing activities: 
Repayment ofFloating Rate Notes due 2011 
Repurchase of Floating Rate Notes due 2011 
Repayment afFixed Rate Notes due 2014 
Proceeds from Denham Credit Facility 
Repayments of Denham Credit Facility 
Proceeds from Bridge Financing under the Revolving Credit Facility 
Repayment of Bridge Financing under the Revolving Credit Facility 
Proceeds from cash advanced under the Revolving Credit Facility 
Repayment of cash advances under the Revolving Credit Facility 
Debt issuance costs 
Issuance of common stock from exercise of warrants and options 
Issuance of common stock from other executive compensation 
Purchase and cancellation of treasury shares, net oftax benefit 
Stock issuance costs 
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities 
Net decrease in cash 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 
2010 2009 2008 

11,505 $ (100,201) $ 24,793 

(27,139) 
2,363 
5,164 

22,174 
19,102 

10,146 
(50) 

73,794 
(8,977) 
(6,491) 

(43,054) 
13,554 

398 
(335) 

(4,732) 
(21,863) 
(12,795) 

3,186 
35,950 

(1,328) 

(433) 
(36) 

(1,797) 

(26,700) 

(423) 

(12,000) 

(5,400) 

(6,248) 

(99) 
(329) 

(51,199) 
(17,046) 
23,266 

87,575 
519 

12,009 
37,575 

(23,406) 

16,233 
(634) 

(74,781) 

(67,168) 
1,704 
5,050 

32,698 
18,187 

10,836 
(762) 

463 

28,066 (35,231) 

36,509 (7,308) 
1,063 (7,173) 
1,571 1,191 

(10,443) 1,916 
(14,786) (18,193) 
(46,553) 17,882 

_--,,-::(3,,,,, 1",6:;:4) __ ~(?4'735~2) 
(52,848) _--,(""25",-,4,,,6"-,7) 

(1,001) 
(1,609) 

(500) 
(57) 

(3,167) 

12,000 

10,400 
(5,000) 
30,000 

(30,000) 
(10,066) 

(II) 

7,323 
(48,692) 
71,958 

(1,959) 

(8,983) 
8,983 

(13,011) 
(778) 

(15,748) 

(12,006) 

(11,040) 

(1,307) 
387 
952 

(755) 

(23,769) 
(64,984) 
136,942 
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Supplemental cash now information: 
Income taxes paid 
Interest paid 

$ 

$ 

6,220 $ 

1,847 $ 
20,072 

The accompanying notes are an integral part qf these consolidatedfinancial statements. 
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431 $ 
31,616 

5,405 
29,426 
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MXENERGY HOLDINGS INC. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 1. Organization 

MXenergy Holdings Inc. ("Holdings"), originally founded in 1999 as a retail energy marketer, was incorporated as a Delaware 
corporation on January 24, 2005 as part of a corporate reorganization. The two principal operating subsidiaries of Holdings, 
MXenergy Inc. and MXenergy Electric Inc., are engaged in the marketing and supply of natural gas and electricity, 
respectively. Holdings and its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Company") operate in 41 market areas located in 14 states in the 
United States (the "U.S.") and two Canadian provinces. 

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation 

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America ("U.S. GAAP"). Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to confonn to the current 
year's presentation. Customer acquisition costs of $22.3 million, $15.3 million and $19.6 million were reclassified from 
investing activities to operating activities on the consolidated statements of cash flows for the fiscal years ended June 30, 20 I 0, 
2009 and 2008, respectively. 

Principles of Consolidation 

The Company owns 100% of an of its subsidiaries. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements include the accounts of 
Holdings and all of its subsidiaries. Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Use of Estimates and Assumptions 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Estimates used in 
connection with revenue recognition, fair value measurements, allowance for doubtful accounts, valuation of goodwill and 
other intangible assets, tax-related reserves and share-based compensation are often complex and may significantly impact the 
amounts reported for those items. Although management uses its best judgment based on information available at the time 
such judgments are made, actual results could differ from estimated amounts. -

Revenue Recognition 

Sales of Natural Gas and Electricity 

Revenues from the sale of natural gas and electricity are recognized in the period in which customers consume the 
commodity. Sales of natural gas and electricity are generally billed by the local distribution companies ("LDCs"), acting as 
the Company's agent, on a monthly cycle basis, although the Company performs its own billing for certain of its market areas. 
The billing cycles for customers do not coincide with the accounting periods used for financial reporting purposes. The 
Company follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues whereby revenues applicable to natural gas and electricity 
consumed by customers, but not yet billed under the cycle billing method, are estimated and accrued along with the related 
costs, and included in operations. Such estimates are refined in subsequent periods upon obtaining final information from the 
LDC. Changes in these estimates are reflected in operations in the period in which they are refined. 

Passthrough Revenues 

Revenues include certain "passthrough" revenues, which represent transportation charges billed to customers by certain 
LDCs. These revenues are offset by corresponding amounts in cost of goods sold for amounts billed to the Company by the 
LDC. 

Fees Charged to Customers 

Various fees charged to customers, such as late payment fees, early contract tennination fees, service shut-off fees and fees 
charged to customers for providing copies of bills, are generally recorded as revenue when collection is deemed to be 
reasonably assured. Late payment fees charged in all markets, and various other fees charged in certain markets are recorded 
as revenue when billed to the customer. Certain other fees are recorded as revenue when actually collected from the customer. 
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